
I 

HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 
Nr-f'"'g.(LJ ~~~ 

VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
AND AGENDA 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
Date: 

Location: 

CALL TO ORDER 

Thursday, January 27, 2022 at 9:00 a.m. and 
Friday, January 28 at 10:00 a.m. 
Council Chambers, Memorial Hall, 290 Esplanade Avenue, 
Harrison Hot Springs, British Columbia 

Meeting called to order by Mayor Facio 
Acknowledgement of Sts'ailes Traditional Territory 

INTRODUCTION OF LATE ITEMS 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

Thursday, January 27, 2022 

(a) Report of the Financial Officer- January 27, 2022 (Verbal) 
Re: Presentation of the 2022-2026 Draft Financial Plan 

(b) Memo to Lets'emot Community to Community Forum - January 21 , 2022 
Re: Flood Mitigation Projects - Harrison Hot Springs Priorities 

Friday, January 28, 2022 

(c) Presentation of Parking Master Plan- IBI Consultants, January 28, 2022 
Re: Parking Master Plan Final 

Recommendation : 

THAT the Parking Master Plan Final of January 19, 2022 be received . 

(d) Report of Operations Manager- January 12, 2022 
Re: Permanent Washrooms for Spring Park 

Recommendation : 

--- --------------------- - -

Item 4(a) 
Page 1 

Item 4(b) 
Page 9 

Item 4(c) 
Page 11 

Item 4(d) 
Page 55 



- 2-

THAT the January 12, 2022 report regarding options for a permanent washroom in Spring Park 
be received. 

r 
Item 4(e) 

(e) Report of Community Services Manager- January 17, 2022 Page 61 

Re: Off Leash Dog Park 

Recommendation : 

THAT the Off Leash Dog Park report of January 17, 2022 be received . 

Item 4(f) 

(f) Report of Operations Manager - January 19, 2022 
Page 63 

Re: Water Filling Stations/Water Fountains 

Recommendation: 

THAT the installation of water bottle filling stations/water fountains at Rendall Park, Spring 
Park and the Beach Washrooms be approved at a cost of up to $45,000.00 to be funded by 
the COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant funding . 

I 

(g) Report of Community Services Manager - January 18, 2022 ltem 4(g) ~ 

Re: BC Transit Bus Shelter Program Page 67 

Recommendation : 

1. THAT staff be authorized move bus stops 132024, 132025 and 126011 to the locations 
proposed in the BC Transit Bus Shelter Program report of January 18, 2022 or alternate 
locations approved by BC Transit. 

2. THAT staff apply to BC Transit's Transit Shelter Program for one E2 Base Shelter in 2022, 
two E2 Base Shelters in 2023, and three E2 Base Shelters in 2024. 

3. THAT an E2 Base Transit Shelter be installed for Bus Stops 132025, 126010, 126011 , 

132007, 132024, and 132004; and 

4. THAT up to $14,000 in 2022 , $28,000 in 2023 and $42,000 in 2024 for the installation of 
bus shelters be included in the Five-Year Financial Plan to be funded from the Federal Gas 

Tax Fund. 

5. ADJOURNMENT 



0 

~ 
-

:::u
 

Cf1
 

)>
 

"'T
1 

-I
 

t: 
"'T

1 

~ 
z )>

 
z n - )>

 
I 

-4
 

"'U
 

I )>
 

fi
) 

z ..-
...

. 
N

 
0 N

 
N

 I N
 

0 N
 

" 
0

')
 

....
_..

.. 

fi
) 

' 



N 

HARRISON HOT SPRINGS- DRA FT 2022-2026- FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN DETAI LS 
2019 2020 2021 2021 I 2022 I 2023 2024 2025 2026 

ACTUAL ACTUAL UNAUDITED BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

I I I I 
GENERAL FUND 

REVENUE 

PROPERTY TAXES 
GENERAL MUNICIPAL TAXES 2,0SS,178 2,178,194 2,322,742 2,42S,128 

'"'·'"1 
2,519,662 1 2,5SS,37S 2,567,209 2,620,309 2,672,71S 

COLLECTIONS FQ_R OT!:JER GOVERNMENTS & AGENCIES 1,74S,S66 1,86S,480 1,739,940 2,026,746 2,0S3,71S 2,118,175 2,214,180 2,300,18S 2,371,789 2,419,224 

PENALTIES & INTEREST - TAXES - 63,SS8 61,282 36,734 53,469 ------ 39,330 38,S24 38,617 1 UTILITY CO. 1% REVENUE TAXES 36,121 36,952 37,901 38,93S 39,SOS 40,296 41,101 
- ·--·-- - ~ 

PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES 4,512 4,308 5,889 6,407 S,SOO 6,400 6,400 6,400 6,400 6,S28 

Total taxes collected 3,904,93S 4,146,216 4,143,207 4,SS1,080 4,S22,867 1 4,682,854 ~ 4,814,891 4,913,299 S,038,793 5,139,569 

REM ITIANCES TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS & AGENCIES (1,745,566) (1,86S,480) (1,739,940) (2,026,746) (2,0S3,71S) (2,118,175) (2,214,180) (2,300,18S) (2,371,789) (2,419,224) 

- - Net Taxes for Municipal Purposes 2,1S9,369 2,280,736 2,403,267 2,S24,334 2,469,1S2 1 2,564,679 1 2,600,711 2,613,114 2,667,004 2,720,344 

REVENUE FROM OWN SOURCES - -
40,000 DCC REVENUE RECOGN ISED ------- -·-~ 

76,173 91,34S 99,27S 66,000 100,000 

'"·'001 
100,000 100,000 RESORT MUNICIPA LITY INITIATIVE 102,000 104,040 

CURBSI DE COL LE CTION ---- - 119,169 122,868 126,~09_ 126,S71 12S,OOO 133,929 14S,239 1SS,OOO 166,000 169,320 
LI CENS ES&P-ERfVIITS -· 38,460 38,86S 43,170 S4,421 33,2Q9 37,384 37,S72 37,I63 37,9S8 38,718 ---· --
FINES - - - - --- - - - 4,312 6,109 9,612 8,970 4,2SO 4,250 4,2SO 4,2SO 4,33S 4,422 

RENTAL & LEASE INCOME 42,300 40,681 40,206 46,791 29,000 40,000 49,SOO 49_,SOO 49,690 S0,684 

PAY PARKING 18S,378 238,42S 279,618 361,S03 280,000 310,000 310,000 310,000 310,000 316,200 

INTEREST EARNED 84,146 114,S87 80,362 78,0SS 4S,900 55,9oo 1 4S,900 45,900 46,818 47,7S4 

GAIN( LOSS) 0~ DIS~OS~L OF ASSETS -· 
(43,408) 6,764 (1,248) 

OTHER..!!!VEST~ ENT INCOME _ 1,054 1,06S 10 1,100 

OTHER REVE NUE FROM OWN SOURCES 216,630 48,230 70,984 36,156 26,000 ' 26,700 ~ 3S,700 3S,700 3S,930 36,649 
Total Revenue fro m Own Sources 724,21S 708,938 748,299 778,467 644,4SO I 

"'·"'I 
728,161 738,113 752,731 767,786 

GRANTS AND DONATIONS 

UNCON DITIONAL GRANTS 317,314 323,888 32S,689 328,000 32S,OOO I 330,000 337,000 334,000 337,000 343,740 

CONDITio"NAL GRA NTS/DO NATiO.!;!_S - 140,526 351,477 794,842 530,829 629,SOO 433,800 128,2S4 128,000 128,000 130,S60 
Tota l Grants and Donatio ns 4S7,840 67S,365 1,120,S31 8S8,829 9S4,SOO I 763,800 1 46S,2S4 462,000 46S,OOO 474,300 

TRANSFERS FROM RESERVES & SURPLUS 

TRANSFERS FROM RESERVES 81,005 8,1SS 34,988 18S,OOO 190,000 

TRANSFER FROM SURPLUS 4S,790 29,000 4S,979 SS,800 I 132,300 

Total transfers from Reserves & Surpl us 4S,790 110,00S 8,1SS 80,967 240,800 I 322,300 

TRANSFER FROM EQUITY IN TCA - GENERAL 671,740 6SS,009 700,SSS 714,047 700,000 739,000 ~ 739,000 739,000 739,000 7S3,780 
TOTAL REVENUE 4,0S8,953 4,430,054 4,980,806 4,956,643 5,008,902 , 5,137,942 ' 4,533,125 4,552,227 4,623,736 4,716,210 

Page 1 



, I 
2019 2020 2021 2021 I 2022 I 2023 2024 2025 2026 

ACTUAL ACTUAL UNAUDITED BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET 

EXPENDITURES 
COUNCIL -

MAYOR FACIO 37,568 38,282 32,697 31,803 39,500 39,550 40,150 40,750 41,538 42,369 
COUNCILLOR REVERSE/HOOPER ---- -- -- - 18,753 21,130 16,154 16,325 20,850 20,850 21,150 2_!,450 21,_?79 22,317 
COUNCILLOR BUCKLEY/VIDAL 17,521 20,~83 16,794 16,794 20,8_?0 20,S50 21,150 21,450 21,879 22,317 

C~NCIL0R HANSE~/PALMER -- - 15,363 _15,604 15,~g4 - 15,627 20,850 . 20,850 21,150 21,~SO 21,879 22,317 
COUNCILLOR PIPER 19,435 20,443 15,954 15,827 - --- 2q_850 20,850 21,150 21,450 21,879 22,317 
OTHER LEGISLATIVE EXPENSES 4,591 9,143 2,154 3,838 8,450 8,950 18,9SO 8,9SO 9,074 9,2SS 

Total Legislative Services 113,230 12S,S8S 99,3SS 100,213 131,3SO 

""'"" f 
143,700 13S,SOO 138,128 140,891 

ADMIN ISTRATION ·--- --·---·- ·---
178,004 EXPENSES- STAFF 187,973 199,S4S 149,9S8 220,3SO 222,091 226,162 230,310 234,916 239,614 

MANAGEMENT EXPENSES 365,328 363,086 351,842 400,783 443,S73 462,483 470,875 479,277 488,642 498,415 
TRANSPORTATION & COMMUNICATION 18,968 20,181 13,402 15,085 13,50Q_ 13,500 16,500 13,500 13,770 14,045_ -------- -
INFORMATION SERVICES 20,842 22,~~3 25,,?0~ 32,013 54 ,9~0 39,500 29,000 29,000 29,440 30,029 
PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICES - 74,734 58,974 59,~89 62,277 120,?60 182,610 64,910 65,8_16 67,532 68,883 - - --------- - - -
LIBRARY BOARD 65,536 67,707 69,448 70,688 70,688 71,6S7 73,401 74,869 76,367 77,894 -
MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES 13,362 13,773 19,709 20,888 22,200 26,800 26,800 26,800 26,800 27,336 
GENERAL GOODS & SUPPLIES 37,964 39,S28 47,633 4S,201 S4,SOO -I 62,250 64,200 65,400 66,558 67,889 
BANK CHARGES & INTEREST 3,450 4,S59 4,220 3,356 4,150 4,150 4,150 4,150 4,233 4,318 
MUNICIPAL OFFICE - 29,001 27,023 - 25.§20 27,143 40,04H 35,274 35,901 36,623 37,354 38,101 -
AMORTIZATION 211,905 201,123 206,060 210,036 220,000 215.000 215,000 215,000 215,000 219.300 

Total Administration 1,029,063 1,018,330 972,734 1,06S,473 

''~"'j 
1,335,315 1,226,900 1,240,745 1,260,612 1,28S,824 

PROTECTIVE SERVICES 
BYLAW ENFORCEMENT 40,649 43,S01 4~,S29 106,4S2 86,790 117,300 84,300 84,300 84,300 8S,986 -- - ---- - -- - -
AN IMAL WASTE STATIONS 3,317 2,932 3,487 7,740 3,630 6,260 6,28S 6,311 6,337 6,464 

-~·-

EMERGENCY MEASURES 12,~42 12,961 2S,196 30,697 1S,SOO 19,500 19,500 19,SOO 19,S10 19,900 -----
FIRE DEPARTMENT --- - -FIRE DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATION 9,822 11,430 16,423 13,876 25,400 25,856 26,373 26,901 27,439 27,987 - -- -

FIRE HALL 25,347 20,156 18,604 26,953 30,2SO 1 23,821 24,302 ~4,816 25,338 25,84S 
FIRE REMUNERATION & BENEFITS 86,438 102,231 90,0SO 100,427 111,236 111,277 111,370 112,967 11S,226 117,S31 
FIRE DEPARTMENT VEHICLES 12,142 17,147 9,281 12,520 13,111 13,189 13,401 13,669 13,942 14,221 
FIRE £->E!~R_I~~~ E_q._UIPMENT -14,849 14,962 _1_?,740 33,156 42,200_~ 19,320 19,646 19,979 20,319 20,725 
FIRE DEPARTMENT AMORTIZATION 4,325 3,911 6,383 11,745 5,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,200 

Total Fire Department 152,922 169,838 158,482 198,678 227,197 • 203,463 . 205,092 208,332 212,265 216,510 
- . - --- . -· --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- ~ ------

Page 2 

w 



~ 

--DEVELOPM ENT PLANNING ------
DEVELOPMENT PLANNING 
BUILDING 

Total Development Planning 
TOURISM & COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT - -- - -

TOURIST INFORMATIO~CENTRE_ 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & EVENTS 

Total Tourism & Community Improvement 
ENGINEERING & TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 

PUBLIC WORKS- COMMON SERVICES 
PUBLIC WORKS OFFICE 
PUBLIC WORKS SHOP 

PUBLIC WORKS YARD ---- ---
PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMENT 

TRAINING 

FLEET 
ROADS & STREETS 

ROAD RESURFACING 
ROAD MA~IN_3/SIG-NAGE 
BRIDGES 
DRAINAGE & DITCHING 

STREET LIGHTING ----
STREET CLEANING 

SNOW REMOVAL 
VILLAGE ENTRANCE 

SIDEWALKS 
PARKING METERS 
TRANSIT 
AMORTIZATION- PUBLIC WORKS 
AMORTIZATION- TRANSPORTATION 

Total Engineering & Transportation Services 
FLOOD PROTECTION 

FLOOD PROTECTION --- -
AMORTIZATION- STORM SEWERS 

Total Flood Protection 

-

-

-
--
--

- -
167,128 

167,128 

33,887 
160,099 
193,985 

206,825 
11,598 

7,432 
4,672 

10,419 
15,415 
54,988 

2,964 
31,120 
4,168 

24,074 
36,352 --

4,996 
10,693 

4,123 
15,871 
36,556 

15,976 
324,402 
822,644 

11,990 
20,765 
32,755 

2019 

ACTUAL 

329,723 

329,723 

23,284 
236,824 
260,108 

170,261 
20,861 

6,755 
1,441 
8,188 
5,601 

45,897 

~314 

18,012 
2,807 

21,189 
32,312 

3,767 
17,517 

3,505 
6,237 

34,994 
11,453 
20,1 79 

290,426 
727,715 

17,448 
22,794 
40,242 

2020 

ACTUAL 

79,809 

79,809 

23,808 
251,314 
275,123 

132,144 
10,928 

3,977 -
104 

6,946 
4,902 

47,072 

13,366 
16,523 

2,891 
7,306 

~.57~ 
4,698 

1_6,043 
4,427 
7,094 

37,418 

20,040 
298,395 
665,847 

11,395 
24,126 
35,521 

2021 

UNAUDITED 

154,088 

154,088 

23,395 
203,668 
227,063 

177,790 
14,455 

6,583 
2,723 
7,945 
9,776 

51,329 

6,661 
14,254 

3,164 
8,583 

41,011 
3,770 

12,2_D3 
2,533 
8,817 

50,427 
151 

19,959 
292,876 
735,010 

18,437 
24,710 
43,147 

Page 3 

2021 

BUDGET 

487,30~ ·f 
487,3oo 1 

2~,46S 

265,018 
289,483 

210,836 
20,400 

8,30.9_ 
2,ooo_ 
9,200 

16,100 · 
47,53~ 

11,221 
25,200 
4,000 

17,000 
41,2~0 

5,000 
19,281 

4,~54 

20,460 
69,000 

500 
20,000 

336,ooo 1 .... ,,I 
14,580 
22,000 
36,580 I 

2022 

BUDGET 

477,70~ 1 
477,700 

24,500 
271,515 
296,015 

202,866 
19,o7o r 
35,434 

2,040 
9,300 

27,840 
57,372 --
11,310 
40,610 

4,ooo I 
- 26,770 ~ 

38,265 - 5,100 
19,645 

5,020 
20,750 
69,020 

700 
20,000 

303,000 

'"·"'I 17,125 
25,000 
42,125J 

2023 

BUDGET 

122,700 

122,700 

24,540 
275,695 
300,235 

170,711 
14,300 
5 ,46~ 

2,08_1 
9,400 

28,381 
53,445 

6,432 
25,962 

4,000 
22,105 

3 6.~96 

5,202 
20,020 

5,102 
21,165 
69,040 

700 
20,000 

303,000 
822,812 

17,182 
25,000 
42,182 

2024 

BUDGET 

122,700 

122,700 

24,~81 

280,092 
304,673 

174,156 
14,5~6 

5,554 
2,122 
9,502 

28,949 
53,595 

6,560 
26,321 
4,000 

22,448 
36,3_37 

5,3_06 
20,40Q 
~.204 

21,588 
69,821 

700 
20,000 

303,000 
830,100 

17,359 
25,000 
42,359 

202S 

BUDGET 

125,154 

125,154 

25,072 
285,552 
310,624 

177,439 
14,795 

5,641 
2,165 
9,606 

29,528 
54,363 

6,691 
26,808 
4,080 

27,796 
37,039 

5,412 
20,808 

5,308 
22,020 
70,618 

700 
20,000 

303,000 
843,817 

17,606 
25,000 
42,606 

2026 

BUDGET 

127,657 

127,657 

25,574 
291,263 
316,837 

180,987 
15,091 

5,754 
2,208 
9,798 

30,118 
55,451 

6,825 
27,344 
4,162 

28,352 
37,779 

5,520 
21,224 

5,414 
22,460 
72,030 

714 
20,400 

309,060 
860,694 

17,958 
25,500 
43,458 



(11 

HARRISON HOT SPRI NGS- DRAFT 2022- 2026- FIVE YEAR FINANCIAl PLAN DETAilS 

f __ - -·~1 
I I, ..... ft L I T 

WASTE MANAGEMENT ---- --
WASTE MANAGEMENT- MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS --- ----
LANDFILL 
WASTE MANAGEMENT- CONTRACTED SERVICES 

Total Waste Management 

PARKS, RECREATIO N & CU LTURAL ~RVICES _ _ 

BEACH 
LAGOON BREAKWATER 
BEACH WASHROOMS 
BOAT LAUNCH & WASHROOMS 
HARRISON LAKE PLAZA -- -- -
FEDERAL WHARF 
FLOAT PLANE DOCK -----
MEMORIAL HALL - - -- --

MEMORIAL BENCHES 
ARTS CENTRE 
YACHT CLUB 
RENDALL PARK 
SPRING PARK -----
BEACH PLAYGROUND -----
OTHER GREEN SPACES 
QWOLT2 PARK __ _ __ _ _ _ ____ _ 

48,120 
5,908 

125,901 
179,929 

106,732 
1,676 

49,405 
20,236 

23 ,03~ 

534 
4,438 

38,884 

1,943 

6,086 
17,609 
35,112 

2,670 
79,532 

1,65 :3_ _ 

.:.N:.;:O:.;.N:,.-C.:::A:"P::'-IT"-A,:.;L'='IT,._E::.;M:.;;S::..;:;EX.:.:.P..:E.:.:N;::_SE::.:D:___ _ _ -------
AMORTIZATION- PARKS 9,101 
AMORTIZATION- OTHERiNFRASTRUCTURE -- --- --- - - - 85,266 --

Total Parks, Recreation, & Cultural Services 
TRANSFERS TO RESERVES AND ALlOWANCES --- -- - -

483,909 

2019 

ACTUAL 

42,888 
6,309 

135,560 

184,757 

101,601 
1,878 

52,390 
22,934 
23,263 

1,080 
2,886 

65,191 

7,908 
5,718 

12,444 
14,374 

4,048 
84,513 

158 

11~50 

104,626 
516,963 

2020 

ACTUAl 

2021 

UNAUDITED 

S1,423 

9,618 
137,269 
198,311 

115,904 
3,414 

51,152 

16,911 
18,965 

585 
412 

25,352 
22,940 

4,920 
3,114 

14,245 

7,110 

383 
55,86_Q 

-~ 
_ .!_4,_:3_18 
131,233 
491,437 

60,324 

138,390 
198,713 

122,039 

3,953 
61,842 
12,019 
27,145 

940 

1,184 
32,404 
22,44S 

3,080 
5,308 

21,950 
19,912 

4,344 
87,562 

14,905 
139,816 
580,846 

2021 

BUDGET 

52,448 
14,500 

146,000 
212,948 

119,000 
12,300-

70,400 
21,825 

281~50 

1,~00 . 

]-,45'!_ 
38,425 

8,200 
4,560 

6,72Q_ 
19,125 

19,350 
3,923 

81,200 

_2,00Q_ 

~cooo 
87,000 

535,558 

2022 

BUDGET 

53,508 

14,500 
209,429 
277,437 

114,070 

12,550 
68,636 
18,300 
32,480 

1,160 
1,620 

39,018 
8,200 
4,765 
6,925 

19,340 
19,771 

3,896 
81,084 

2,000 l--

2023 

BUDGET 

54,575 

1,500 
166,239 
222,314 

116,351 

12,590 
64,662 

18,480 
38,020 

1,170 

1.~~ 
39,501 

8,208 
4,830 
7,053 

17,675 

20,155 
3,967 

82,606 

2,0'!0 

2024 

BUDGET 

55,667 

1,500 
171,000 

228,167 

118,678 

12,§31 
65,818 
18,674 
38,_?00 

1,181 

!~~1-
40,196 

8,212 
4,897 
7,183 

17,97_6 
20,548 

4,042 
84,258 

_ 2,0~1 -

2025 

BUDGET 

56,780 
1,500 

182,180 
240,460 

121,052 

12,878 
66,996 
18,926 

__ 39,090 
1,191 

- _1.~82 
40,905 

8,376 
4,965 
7,315 

18,284 
20,947 

4,118 
85,943 

2,122 

2026 

BUDGET 

57,915 
1,530 

185,824 
245,269 

123,473 

13,136 
68,336 
19,305 

39,872 
1,215 

1,?1~ 
41,723 

8,544 
5,064 
7,462 

18,650 
21,366 

4,200 
87,662 

2,165 

~
·--- --- ·---- -

16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,320 
150,000 150,000 1SO,OOO 150,000 153,000 
599,815 1 604,950 612,535 620,793 633,208 

CONTRIBUTION TO ALLOWANCES --- --- 95,461 248,763 360,0S3 447,060 440,900H 419,900 t 445,102 44S,206 44S,830 4S4,747 
403,780 3S8,684 237,945 353,472 230,000 224,300 . 203,254 203,000 204,500 208,590 CONTR IBUTIONS TO STATUTORY RESERVES 
499,241 607,447 597,999 800,532 670,900 I 644,200 .I 648,356 648,206 650,330 663,337 

90,155 79,905 110,485 79,683 158,800 1 68,800 83,800 68,800 68,800 70,176 
Total Transfers to Reserves 

TRANSFER TO CAPITAL FUND 
Total Transfers 589,395 687,352 708,483 880,215 829,700 I 713,000 . 732,156 717,006 719,130 733,513 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,821,170 4,120,008 3,759,314 4,328,336 5,008,902 I 5,137,942 ~ 4,533,12S 4,S52,227 4,623,736 4,716,210 

SURPLUS (DEFICm 237,783 310,046 1,221,492 628,307 

Page 4 



en 

HARRISON HOT SPRINGS- DRAFT 2022 - 2026- FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN DETAILS 

2019 2020 2021 2021 I 2022 I 2023 2024 2025 2026 

ACTUAL ACTUAL U NAUDITED BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET BU DG ET BUDG ET BU DGET 

I I I 
CAPITAL FUND -REVENUE 

GRANTS- PROVINCIAl/FEDERAl/OTHER 1B0,3S6 239,047 20,000 2BB,299 3,4B7,ooo 1 3,747,301 

DEBT RESERVE INCOME 139 153 13B 116 

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS 36,66B 

TRANSFER FROM RESERVES 274,006 264,44B 1B2,4BO 407,B14 396,~;j 503,000 109,000 109,000 111,1BO 113,404 -· -- ------ ·• 

TRANSFER FROM SURPLUS 4B1,1S3 67S 1S~O 200,000 -------- - --
TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND - - 90,155 79,905 110,4B5 79,6B3 1SB,BOO 68,800 1 B3,BOO 6B,BOO 6B,BOO 70,176 

DEFFEREO REVENUES RECOGNISED 57,925 22,075 

OTHER- CAPITAL REVENUE 2,21S 3,3B1 4,S87 S,B36 

RMI FUNDING 5S,993 411,19B 319,906 S3,7BS 443,SOO 1 619,000 

DCC REVENUE RECOGNISED 51,BS6 93,631 S33,400 

CONTRIBUTED ASSETS 469,300 

TOTAL REVENUES 1,611,242 1,109,405 746,227 B35,533 4,4BS,7SB • 5,671,501 1 192,BOO 177,BOO 179,9BO 1B3,580 - - - - --
DEBT DEBT FINANCING 1B,S57 16,59S 14,220 13,42S lS,700 ~ 15,700 1· 1S,700 15,700 15,700 16,014 

DEBT REPAYMENTS 73,952 118,771 57,741 57,862 53,100 53,100 53,100 S3,100 S3,100 54,162 

92,509 13S,366 71,961 71,287 6B,Boo 1 68,800 1 68,BOO 6B,BOO 6B,800 70,176 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

·MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS 4S,1B5 B34,9S8 1 750,000 

OFFICE EQUIPMENT 4,302 34,329 37,3BB 26,241 261500 35,000 1 9,000 9,000 9,1BO 9,364 

FIRE DEPT VEHICLES 82,B19 302,000 1oo,ooo I 383,000 
- ----

FIRE DEPT EQUIPMENT 99,0B6 S8,790 76,000 

PWVEHICLES 32,590 40,000 
----------

PY:f. EQUI~N>:__ 92,933 

BUS SHELTER 21,966 2,S42 14,000 I 14,000 - --- --
FLOOD PUMP BUILDING/QWOLT2 PARK S7,92S 73~9_?1 1S,OOO 30,000 - ---- .. ---

1,1oO:Oo':_) STORMWATER UPGRADES - - 35~972 178,B66 _1~3]~ 2,085,000 l ] 00,000 ~_,(>00 102,000 104,040 --------- -- --
STREET LIG HTING 239,047 ------ -
SIDEWALKS REPLACEMENT 22,SOO -
BEACH REDEVELOPMENT 14,674 1,162,000 1,894,000 

TRAILS DEVELOPMENT 288,299 3SO,OOO 161,701 

ROADS REPLACEMENT B23,323 42S,OOO 

RMI PROJECTS S5,993 411,19B 31~,906 39,111 243,SOO 194,000 

DOCK REPLACEMENT 20,000 20,000 

FEDERAL WHARF REPLACEMENT 16,212 

RECREATION/ PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT 35,177 10,000 36,000 ~ 1S,OOO 

1,S1B,733 937,371 674,265 764,246 4,416,9SB ' 5,602,701 ~ 124,000 109,000 111,1BO 113,404 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,611,242 1,072,737 746,227 835,S33 4,485,758 1 5,671,501 1 192,800 177,800 179,980 183,580 

TFR to RESERVES 36,66B 
CAPITAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT) /Carry forward 

Page 5 



-.I 

HARRISON HOT SPRINGS- DRAFT 2022- 2026- FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN DETAI LS 

1--- -~ 1 •• ,._.~.__.I 
WASTEWATER 

REVEN UES -- ----~ ---
OPERATING REVENUES --------- - ----
UTILITY SERVICE FEES 
---~------ --- ------------
INTEREST 

GRANT 

- -- ---.- __?60,9~ 
- ---- --- . -- .. _?_1~?_~7 - -

-· --- 2!:_,2_8! 

- -------- ------ -
GA IN (LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF_ASSETS 

2019 

ACTUAL 

626,71S 

-- 22:!_,2~.9 
3!cS]<j 

(11,6_39) 

2020 

ACTUAL 

~70,826 

.. 224,_!!?6 
21, 733 

6,55'!._ 

2021 

UNAUD ITED 

682,900 

2_31,477 

p,9S3 

22,045 

2021 

BUDGET 

644,500 

22~,00~-

1S,OO~ 

2022 2023 

BUDGET BUDGET 

705,500 70J,l75 

232,000 ~- 2_3_~,!JS_Q 

r-- .. -

24,000 

2024 

BUDGET 

2025 

BUDGET 

717,557 7?.8,796 

2~,711 ·- _ 2_42,_~65 

2026 

BUDGET 

743,372 

247,314 

TRANS FER FROM SURPLUS _____ _ 

TRANSFER FROM EQUITY IN TCA- SEWER 14S,34S 157,095 185,404 204,758 160~0001 208,000 ! 208,000 208,000 208,000 212,160 

EXPENDITURES 
SEWER ADMINISTRATION 

TRAINING 
WASTEWATER COLLECTION ----------------
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 

LIFT STATIONS 
AMORTIZATION- SEWER 

TOTAL REVENUES 944,394 1,025,424 1,109,389 1,151,133 1,043,500 ' 1,169,500 ~ 1,148,22S 1,163,268 1,179,261 1,202,846 

99,S08 

300 

---------- ---- _._.!2,_()3_'±__ - ---
334,978 

Tot al Operating Costs 

106,S74 

14S,34S 

703,739 

99,94§ 

2,399 

4~c6!_1 
343,320 

89,397 

1S7,09S 

734,766 

101,974 

198 

- __ 6_.},!_9 

- 39S,9§2 -
91,64S 

18S,404 

781,462 

106,2S2 
4,469 

_2~TP 
387,999 

96,673 

204,7S8 

824,879 

113,SS4 

S,2S8 

- ~·39_-:._ 
41?,_912 
103,482 

160,000 

819,SOO 

' 
123,894 

6,580 

_26,151 
45-7,2GO 

115,615 

208,000 

937,500 

119,468 

6,7_12 
___ _]§,40_ 

- ~37,6_~ 
116,917 
208,000 

91S,175 

122,227 
6,846 

26,§_9~ 

442,533 
119,256 

208,000 

925,5S7 

1?4,532 
6,983 

- - _2§.~!:_8 
448,!_1} 
121,641 
208,000 

936,796 

127,023 

7,123_ 

--- ~1~7 
_457,686 
124,074 

212,160 

95S,S32 

TRANSFERS TO RESERVES AND ALLOWANCES 
TRANSFER TO CAPITAL FUND 

22,287 31,534 9,953 

213,000 213,000 246,608 224,000 224,000 ~ 232,000 ! 233,050 237,711 242,465 247,314 

Total Transfers 23S,287 244,534 246,608 233,9S3 224,000 I 232,000 ! 233,050 237,711 242,465 247,314 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 939,026 979,300 1,028,070 1,058,832 1,043,SOO I 1,169,500 ! 1,148,225 1,163,268 1,179,261 1,202,846 

Sewer Operating Fund SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

CAPITAL FUND 

REVENUES 
DCC REVENUE RECOGNISED 

TRANSFER FROM SEWER OPERATIONS 
TRANSFER FROM RESERVES 
CONTRIBUTED ASSETS 

INFRASTRUCTURE GRANTS 

5,368 

86,115 

213,000 

40,SOO 

46,124 

553,943 

213,_()00 
385,987 

81,318 

130,5!3 
224,876 

256,525 

92,301 

15,550 
224,000 

1,050,000 

224,000 

1,100,000 

! • 

I 
I 

6oo.ooo I 
232,000 . 

1,010,000 
233,050 237,711 242,465 247,314 

TOTAL REVENUES 339,615 1,152,930 611,914 239,5SO 2,374,000 I 1,842,000 ! 233,0SO 237,711 242,465 247,314 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 126,61S 939,930 387,038 15,SSO 2,1SO,OOO I 1,610,000 I 
213,000 213,000 224,876 224,000 224,0001 232,000 233,0SO 237,711 242,465 247,314 WASTEWATER RESERVES 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 339,615 1,152,930 611,914 239,550 2,374,000 I 1,842,000 ! 233,050 237,711 242,465 247,314 

Capit al Fund SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

Page 6 



00 

HARRISON HOT SPRINGS- DRAFT 2022- 2026- FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN ~LS 
1n1o 

l--- - m l II,L»AL I I 
WATER FUND 

REVENUES 
Q_PERATING REVENUES __ 

UTILITY SERVICE FEES - - -
INTEREST 

2019 

ACTUAL 

352,113 

243,718 
5,296 

2020 

ACTUAL 

367,864 
247,731 

6,504 

2021 

UNAUDITED 

390,362 

256,410 
4,373 

2021 

BUDGET 

349,513 

252,300 

I 

2022 

BUDGET 

369,920 
259,000 

2023 

BUDGET 

376,598 
260,726 

2024 

BUDGET 

384,1_30 
262,493 

2025 

BUDGET 

408,166 
267,743 

2026 

BUDGET 

416,330 

273,098 

GAIN (LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS 
TRANSFER FROM EQUITY IN TCA 

475,951 
224,611 

1,919 
(440,616) 
148,027 172,881 173,191 - __ 173,191 160,000- , 178,000 ~ 178,000 178,000 178,000 181,560 

TOTAL REVENUES 409,892 774,009 795,291 824,337 761,813 I 806,920 ~ 815,324 824,623 853,909 870,987 

EXPENSES 
WATER ADMINISTRATION 

TRAINING 
WATER SUPPLY & DISTRIBUTION 

WAT~Ii_ RESERV91R 
WATER TREATMENT PLANT 
HYDRAN:_:T.:::S __ _ 
AMORTIZATION- WATER 

- - - Total Operating Costs 

TRANSFERS TO RESERVES AND ALLOWANCES 

TRANSFER TO CAPITAL FUND 

94,053 97,495 102,130 110,409 
300 623 1, 798 2,405 

73,705 84,741 58,305 75,338 
3,570 4,566 10,378 5,494 

89,531 89,282 . 94,474 94,856 

3,910 9,877 4,700 5,593 
148,027 172,881 173,191 173,191 

413,095 459,465 444,977 467,286 

1,919 5,296 6,504 4,373 

128,208 i . 136,542 
4,670 

82,350 
5,957 

119,294 

18,310 
178,000 

3,258 -

71,272 
13,925 

114,700 

18,150 
160,0001 
509,513 545,123 

134,553 
4,763 

83,673 

6,076 
121,050 

18,376 
178,000 

546,491 

137,614 
4,859 

85,022 
6,198 

123,221 
18,744 

178,000 

553,657 

140,226 
4,956 

86,399 
6,322 

125,435 
19,119 

178,000 

560,456 

143,031 

5,055 
88,127 

6,448 
127,944 

19,501 

181,560 
571,666 

367,985 242,118 248,660 252,300 252,300 l ___ 261,797 ! 268,833 270,966 293,453 299,322 

Total Transfers 369,904 247,415 255,164 256,673 252,300 I 261,797 ~ 268,833 270,966 293,453 299,322 

TOTALEXPENDITURES 782,999 706,879 700,141 723,9_59 ____ 7~&13_1 ____ 806,920 . 815,324 824,623 853,909 870,988 

Water Operating fund SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

CAPITAL FUND 
REVENUES 

DCC REVENUE RECOGNISED 
INFRASTRUCTURE GRANTS 

TRANSFER FROM WATER OPERATING -- -
TRANSFER FROM SURPLUS 
TRANSFER FROM RESERVES 

{373,107) 

43,944 
1,988,728 

367,985 

231,386 

67,129 95,150 

242,118 248,660 

100,378 

125,000 12S,OOO 

252,300 2S2,300 261,797 268,833 270,966 293,453 299,322 

I 420,000 

TOTAL REVENUES 2,632,043 242,118 248,660 252,300 377,300 ' 806,797 ~ 268,833 270,966 293,453 299,322 

EXPENDITURES 
DEBT FINANCING 6,899 S,304 1,360 -

110,000 110,000 110,000 -1 -1 DEBT REPAYMENTS 

116,899 115,304 111,360 - ~ 
119,086 120,628 137,300 252,300 10?_,300 261,797 

2,396,058 6,187 275,000 545,000 
TRANSFERS TO RESERVE AND ALLOWANCES -- ·---- -
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 

268,833 270,966 293,453 299,322 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,632,043 242,118 248,660 252,300 377,300 I 806,797 ~ 268,833 270,966 293,453 299,322 

Water Capital Fund SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

Page 7 



q(L) 
VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 

HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 
AJ,.r., ... «t ~~61 

TO: 
CC: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT: 

BRIEFING NOTE 

Lets'emot C2C Forum 
Mayor & Council 
January 21, 2022 

File: 7130-09/0540-20-01 

Flood Mitigation Projects- Harrison Hot Springs Priorities 

The Village of Harrison Hot Springs (HHS) is grateful for the opportunity to join with our 
neighbors, through the Lets'emot C2C Forum, to put forward a joint request for funding for 
flood mitigation works within our region . Below please find the top priorities for flood mitigation 
projects within the Village: 

Priority# 1: Access Road to HHS Sanitary Sewage Treatment Plant 

COST ESTIMATE: $750,000 - $1,000,000 (Source: Northwest Hydraulic Consultants 
(NHC)) 

SCOPE: Raise the elevation of the 400 m road to the HHS Sanitary Sewage Treatment Plant 
by 1.5 meters and add external rip rap armouring along Harrison Lake. This project will come 
forward at part of the HHS Flood Risk Assessment currently underway by NHC. 

RATIONALE: Due to increased flooding associated with climate change, the Village has 
identified the vulnerable access road to the Waste Water Treatment Plant (WWTP) as a 
disaster risk. Increasing erosion will eventually result in the road being washed out 
preventing Village staff from accessing and maintaining the Plant. Damage may also 
result to the sanitary force main, which would result in the release of untreated sewage 
into Harrison Lake. 

This project will protect public health & safety and safeguard environmental assets, thus 
protecting the source for drinking water for residents and visitors who obtain drinking 
water from Harrison Lake. 

REGIONAL IMPACT: Maintaining water quality in Harrison Lake is essential to downstream 
communities who are located along and who rely upon the water quality in the Harrison River 
such at the Sts'ailes and Sq'ewlets First Nation, and to the fisheries and other wildlife which 
are dependent on these waters. 

Priority# 2: Upgrade Harrison Lake Dike to meet current standards 

I COST ESTIMATE: $4,500,000- 6,750,000 (Source: Northwest Hydraulic Consultants) 

SCOPE: Raise the elevation of the Harrison Lake Dike by 1.0 meters to address deficiencies 
identified in the July 2015 Lower Mainland Dike Assessment prepared by Northwest 
Hydraulic Consultants for the BC Ministry of Forest Lands and Natural Resources. Microsoft 
Word- 3000427 Final Lower Mainland Dike Assessment.docx (gov.bc.ca) 

9 



10 

2 

RATIONALE: The deficiencies identified in the 2015 Lower Mainland Dike Assessment 
need to be addressed to avoid a potential dike breach along the Harrison Dike. A breach 
would cause flooding in the Village of Harrison Hot Springs and damage to property and 
essential infrastructure including the roads required for emergency evacuation purposes. 
The proposed remediation would provide protection against the 200-year water level plus 
climate change impacts up to the year of 2100. (Source: Northwest Hydraulic 
Consultants) 

REGIONAL IMPACT: A breach to the Harrison Dike would impact residents of the District of 
Kent to the north, whose only access road may be blocked by floodwaters. This would also 
impact residents and recreational users in Area C of the Fraser Valley Regional District 
whose access and egress is also through the Village. Kent residents south of the Village 
could also be impacted by flooding in the event of a dike breach. 

Priority# 3: Elevate Miami River Sanitary Sewer Force Main 

[ Project Estimate: $1,497,000 (Source: CTQ Engineering) 

SCOPE: Relocate existing Miami River Force Main from river bed to an elevated bridge 
crossing and install associated lift station to replace current siphon system. 

RATIONALE: The Sanitary Siphon Crossing of the Miami River services 5 sanitary 
catchments representing 50% of the Village. In the winter of 2013, a routine field 
inspection by VHHS personnel noted that the sanitary siphon lines running parallel to Hot 
Springs Road were exposed and 'floating' in the Miami River and the line was re-bedded, 
to mitigate the risk of a sewage spill into the river. The cause of this exposure was the 
increased dynamic flow of the Miami River during major storm events, an occurrence 
which is increasing due to climate change. The impact of a potential spill on the riparian 
and aquatic habitat would be potentially damaging to the environment and would impact 
water quality in Harrison Lake. 

REGIONAL IMPACT: Maintaining water quality in Harrison Lake is essential to downstream 
communities who are located along and who rely upon the water quality in the Harrison River 
such at the Sts'ailes and Sq'ewlets First Nation, and to the fisheries and other wildlife which 
are dependent on these waters. 

Priority# 4: Floodplain Mapping 

[ COST ESTIMATE: $200,000 for Harrison Hot Springs (Source: Northwest Hydraulic Consultants) 

SCOPE: Update floodplain mapping 

RATIONALE: The Village relies upon floodplain mapping undertaken by the Province in 
previous years. The Village strongly supports the development of new comprehensive 
and contiguous floodplain on a regional scale to ensure that data is consistent and readily 
available between jurisdictions. 

REGIONAL IMPACT: This work would strongly benefit the region as an entirety. 



4Cc) 

HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 
N"'furqo(r, f(ef'""~./ 

Final Report 

Village of Harrison Hot Springs 
Parking Master Plan 

I Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

I 8 I by 181 Group 
January 19, 2022 

I 

11 



12 

IBI GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

Document Control Page 

CLIENT: Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

PROJECT NAME: Parking Master Plan 

REPORT TITLE: Village of Harrison Hot Springs Parking Master Plan 

IBI REFERENCE: 135795 

VERSION: 

DIGITAL MASTER: 

ORIGINATOR: Janice Zhang, Jacob Malleau 

REVIEWER: Attila Hertel, Stefan Tsang , 

AUTHORIZATION: Peter Richards 

CIRCULATION LIST: Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

1.0 Draft Final Report (November 5, 2021) 
2.0 Draft Final Report (November 26, 2021) 

HISTORY: 3.0 Draft Final Report (December 6, 2021) 
4.0 Final Report (December 24, 2021) 
5.0 Final Report (January 19, 2022) 

January 19, 2022 



IBI GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VIL LAG E OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Vi llage of Harrison Hot Springs 

Table of Contents 

1 Introduction ......................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Study Background .................................................................................................... 1 

1.2 Public Parking System .... .. ..... .. ...... ................ ..................................... ..................... 1 

2 Parking Supply and Demand Assessment.. .............. ............... .................... .................... 4 

2.1 Parking Supply and Demand Surveys ................... ............. ................ .. .............. ..... 4 

2.2 Existing Parking Operations .............. .. ...................... .. .............................. .............. 4 

2.3 Future Parking Projections .......... ........ .......................... ........................ .................. 8 

2.4 Future Parking Needs ............... ...... ................................................. ..................... . 11 

2.5 Future Parking Summary ..................................... .. .............. ... ................... ............ 15 

3 On-Street Parking Regulation Review ............................................................................ 17 

3.1 Existing Curbside Regulations ................................................................. .. ........... . 17 

3.2 Parking Regulation Changes ..................... .. .................................. ........................ 18 

4 Additional Parking Considerations ................................................................................. 27 

4.1 Parking Wayfinding Technologies ... ......................................... .................... ... ...... 27 

4.2 Accessible Parking .... ..... ............................. .. ...... .. .... ..... ...... ... .. .. ..... .. ... ... ..... ... .. .... 28 

4.3 Bicycle Parking .... ..... ..... .......... .. .. .... .. ..... ... .. .... .... .. ... .... ....... ........... ... ... .... ... ... ....... 29 

4.4 Electric Vehicle Parking ............ ... .. .. .. ...... .......... ................ ..... ............................... 30 

4.5 Event Parking Operations ..... ... ........... .. .......................... ...................... ... .............. 31 

4.6 Parking Education Best Practices ....... .. ................. ............................. .... ............... 32 

5 Public and Stakeholder Consultation ............................................................................. 34 

5.1 Virtual Public Information Centre 1 ........ ................................................................ 34 

5.2 Virtual Stakeholder Meeting ..... .. .. ... ................ .. .... ...... ... ....... ... ..... .. ..... .......... ... ..... 34 

5.3 Online Survey ..... ................................................................................................... 35 

5.4 Virtual Public Information Centre 2 .. ...... ................................................................ 36 

6 Conclusions and Recommendations ............................................................................. 37 

January 19, 2022 

13 



14 

IBI GROUP FI NAL REP ORT 
V ILLAG E OF HA RRISO N HOT SPRIN GS PARKING MASTER PLA N 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

1 Introduction 
The Village of Harrison Hot Springs is located on the shores of Harrison Lake, approximately 140 
km east of Vancouver, British Columbia. While Harrison Hot Springs has a small population of 
approximately 1 ,500 residents , the Village is a popular tourist destination hosting over 750,000 
visitors annually and is a popular day trip destination of Lower Mainland communities. The visitors 
are known to predominantly travel to the Village between May and September. With such a large 
demand over summer months, significant pressure is placed on the Village's parking system. 

1.1 Study Background 

The Village of Harrison Hot Springs initiated the Parking Master Plan to improve year round 
parking operations with a focus on the summer peak period. This study aims to determine the 
needs and objectives among the different parking user groups (visitors, residents, and 
stakeholders) in Harrison Hot Springs. Visitors are known to be looking for parking opportunities 
as close as possible to the waterfront, residents are concerned about visitor parking demand 
spilling into their residential neighbourhoods, and business owners are concerned about parking 
spaces remaining available for their customers. 

The key study outcome is a set of recommendations aimed at improving parking operations. The 
recommendations include changes to parking prohibitions and restrictions, seasonal resident only 
parking permits, an expanded pay parking system, and increased public parking opportunities. 

The Parking Master Plan consists of the following sections: 

• Parking Supply and Demand Assessment: assesses Harrison Hot Springs' 
parking operations to identify existing supply constraints and projects future parking 
demand to help meet future needs; 

• On-Street Parking Regulation Review: develops the recommended parking 
regulation improvements by investigating potential changes to on-street parking 
operations. The objective is to develop a solution where the future parking needs of 
all users are balanced with public safety objectives; 

• Additional Parking Considerations: investigates additional parking improvements 
such as parking wayfinding , electric vehicle parking , public education , and increases 
to accessible and bicycle parking opportunities; 

• Public and Stakeholder Consultation: engages the public and key stakeholders to 
understand existing parking issues and opportunities, and to collect feedback 
regarding the preliminary study conclusions and recommendations; and 

• Conclusions and Recommendations: summarizes the study findings and outlines 
the recommended parking improvements. 

1.2 Public Parking System 

The study focuses on the municipal parking system, which consists of 2,384 parking spaces 
including 110 oft-street spaces and 2,27 4 on-street spaces. Pay parking is in effect near the 
waterfront between 6:00AM and 7:00 PM from May 15 to September 15 with the following fees: 

• Zone 1: 4 hour maximum parking duration (Hour 1: $2.00, Hour 2: $3.00, Hour 3: 
$4.00, Hour 4: $5.00); 

• Zone 2: Hourly or daily parking ($3.00 per hour or $12.00 per day) ; and 

• Rest of Village: free parking. 



181 GROUP FINA L REPORT 
VILLAG E OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

The Village's pay parking system is illustrated in Exhibit 1-1 . 

Exhibit 1-1 : Pay Parking Map 

Pay Parking Zone Map HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 
In effect from: Mcy 15 to September 15 A/ ... 1.,.-11 ~,..,w,.; 

;>' 

N 

, . --
' A_.,_' -\ ., '-':\ 

. "' \. 

l_ 

I r· 
t:- --".:,! cw 

) 

W+E 
s 

January 19,2022 

Free parking is in effect Village-wide during the non-summer period (September 16 to May 14). 

A total of 626 parking spaces are provided in the waterfront area, while 1,758 parking spaces are 
provided throughout the residential neighbourhoods. The Harrison Hot Springs existing parking 
system is illustrated geographically in Exhibit 1-2, the waterfront area is shaded yellow. 

Note that there is a vacant lot on the south east corner of Hot Springs Road and Miami River Drive 
that is typically used for overflow parking during special events. Further consideration for this 
vacant lot will be included in the next Official Community Plan update. Additionally , note that the 
Milos and Village Mall Lots are privately owned but open for public use. 

2 

15 



16 

IBI GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

Exhibit 1-2: Harrison Hot Springs Existing Parking System 

HARRISION HOT SPRINGS 
PARKING MASTER PLAN 

Existing Supply 

CJ 
CJ 
## 

Waterfront 

Rest of Village 

SYSTEM 

On-street Parking 

Publicly Owned Parking Lot 

Privately Owned Parking Lot 

Parking Capacity (spaces) 

Waterfront 

Total Capacity 

626 spaces 

1758 spaces 

2384 spaces 

0 250 0 OL- m 

January 19, 2022 

Htni&:JnLB~.d 

~II::: 

39 

" 



IBI GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

2 Parking Supply and Demand Assessment 

The Parking Supply and Demand Assessment examines the collected parking utilization data to 
gain an in-depth understanding of existing parking operations. Future parking demand is also 
projected to understand how parking operations are anticipated to change over time. 

2.1 Parking Supply and Demand Surveys 

To provide a solid basis for the parking master plan and a meaningful needs analysis, it is 
important to accurately collect parking occupancy data in the field . A complete review of the public 
parking system was undertaken during a typical summer weekend and summer weekday to 
evaluate peak seasonal parking operations. The data collection exercise inventoried the publicly 
available on-street and off-street parking supply and collected hourly parking demand data 
throughout the Village. The surveys were completed on the following days: 

• Saturday, August 28, 2021 : 8:00AM to 8:00PM; and 

• Wednesday, September 1, 2021 : 9:00AM to 7:00 PM. 

It should be noted that both survey days were sunny with daily high temperatures of approximately 
25C, which is representative of a typical peak summer day. The supply and demand surveys 
distinguished between general, accessible, and special parking spaces (electric vehicle, 
motorcycle, boat launch, etc.). 

2.2 Existing Parking Operations 

The existing conditions assessment evaluates the health of Harrison Hot Springs' parking 
operations. Based on industry standards, parking systems are considered "effectively full " at an 
occupancy of approximately 85-90%, depending on lot size and other characteristics. This 
represents the point where finding a space becomes challenging for drivers, resulting in an 
increased likelihood of a driver having to search for an available parking space. Given that the 
Harrison Hot Springs parking system is predominantly used during the summer months with the 
system relatively underutilized during the winter, extending the target summertime utilization to 
90-95% is considered appropriate. This is due to the limited parking opportunities and the high 
demand, and the fact visitors are simply looking for any parking space that they can find . This 
approach maximizes the use of the existing parking system and manages the need for expensive 
new parking facilities that will remain underutilized during the non-summer months. 

While the entire Harrison Hot Springs parking system was reviewed, the parking supply and 
demand assessment focuses on the waterfront area where demand is known to be concentrated . 
The Harrison Hot Springs waterfront parking utilization by time-of-day is illustrated in Exhibit 2-1 . 

4 

17 



18 

IBI GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HARR ISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

Exhibit 2-1: Waterfront Parking Utilization 

700 

600 

500 

QJ 400 I1 
.c 
QJ 300 > 

200 

100 

0 

Capacity: 626 parking spaces 

~ 
q;;':S 

Max Weekday Demand: 297 
vehicle~ (47%) 

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 
oj ':5 \S ':5 "':5 "·':5 nj ':5 ti< ':5 Vj ':5 co ':5 

~ ~ ~v ~ ~ ~ ~ 

- Weekend - weekday - Capacity 

"' .'\J'\J 
~\. 

~ 
o:.'il 
~-u· 

~ r;.'S "J' 

As illustrated in Exhibit 2-1, the waterfront parking system experiences a peak demand of 620 
vehicles (99%) at 4:00PM on the weekend indicating that parking opportunities are limited during 
the peak. 

To identify Village-wide parking capacity constraints, the parking utilization of each off-street lot 
and on-street segment during the peak hour (weekend 4:00 PM) is illustrated in Exhibit 2-2 . Using 
the illustrated parking utilization and a targeted 90% effective capacity threshold, parking capacity 
constraints were identified. 

5 



181 GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared fcx Vihge of Harrison Hot Springs 

Exhibit 2-2: Peak Parking Utilization Map (Weekend 4:00 PM) 

i 1RI1i30nL'll« 

./D'' ., ~':;.!':a ,_ 1r ,. ===t,,.~· :: ~ .. -=- ~ 

~12 II -F 2" I 
~ 9 ~ 2A 

. ~ 

_.__ 14 • 

s---;:;: -
~~ 

i r f< 

• 

HARRISION HOT SPRINGS 
PARKING MASTER PLAN 

Existing Utilization 

Percent Occupied 

On-street Off-street 

- 0%-50% 
51%-70% 

71%-90% 

- 91% - 100% 

1#1 Parking Capacity (spaces) 

Waterfront 

Demand I Capacity 

Waterfront 620 I 626 

Utilization 

99% 
9% Rest of Village 16311758 

SYSTEM 783 I 2384 33% 

0 125 250 
• 1m 

January 19,2022 

10 

!!! II;; ~11 ::: 

:? 

~ 

~· · ;:::: 

19 



20 

IBI GROUP FI NAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HA RRISON HOT SPRIN GS PARKIN G MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

Based on Exhibit 2-2 , the following conclusions are drawn: 

• No residential neighbourhood capacity concerns were observed as indicated by the 
9% overall utilization and most streets operating under 50% utilization ; 

• On-street parking along Lillooet Avenue and Cedar Avenue are the only free parking 
facilities near the waterfront that operated at effective capacity, indicating that pay 
parking operations could be considered; 

• The boat launch parking lot operated at capacity throughout most of the afternoon , 
indicating that additional boat launch parking would be beneficial ; and 

• Parking utilization in the residential areas near the waterfront operated with utilization 
below 50%. This indicates that waterfront parking demand spillover into the 
residential neighbourhoods is currently not a major issue from a parking capacity 
point of view. However, given the limited parking opportunities available in the 
waterfront area, parking demand spillover may become a larger issue in the future 
as parking demand grows. 

Based on the observed parking operations, waterfront parking users can expect to experience 
difficulty in finding an available parking space during summer weekend peak hours. Additional 
parking supply is required to meet the 90% target utilization which would also prevent further 
parking demand spillover into the residential neighbourhoods. 

2.2.1 Parking Duration 

Parking turnover is the duration or amount of time a parked vehicle occupies a parking space. The 
parking turnover assessment provides insight into the average number of vehicles served by 
parking spaces daily. The average parking turnover was estimated using 2021 pay parking data 
provided by the Village. The total number of hours purchased in 2021 was 7,906,724 hours, which 
when divided by the total transaction counts recorded (47,445 transactions) , resulted in an 
average parking duration of 2.78 hours or 166 minutes. When considering the 6:00 AM to 7:00 
PM pay parking period , this indicates that each parking space serves 4 to 5 vehicles per day on 
average. 

Using the same set of data, transaction counts were grouped into average parking durations from 
one to seven hours, the result of which is illustrated in Exhibit 2-3 . 

Exhibit 2-3: Parking Turnover Summary 

(}) 
c 

16,000 

14,000 

2 12,000 
(.) 

~ 10,000 
ro 
.:: 8,000 
4-
0 .._ 6,000 
<lJ 
.0 
E 4,000 
::l 
z 

2,000 

0 
0-1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5-6 6-7 >7 

Duration (hr) 

7 



IBI GROUP FI NAL REP ORT 
VI LLAG E OF HA RR ISON HOT SPRING S PA RKING MASTER PLA N 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19. 2022 

Exhibit 2-3 indicates that most parking sessions are two to three hours, with a steady decline in 
the frequency as the duration increases. 

As determined through the public and stakeholder engagement, the 4-hour maximum parking 
spaces in Zone 1 have been well received . Additionally , short duration parking spaces were 
commonly requested . To meet this request, the Village is recommended to implement four to five 
additional 15-minute maximum parking spaces near popular establishments such as restaurants 
along Esplanade Avenue. These high turnover parking spaces are anticipated to predominantly 
meet pick-up, drop-off, and take-out restaurant demand. Note that there are currently seven 15-
minute maximum parking spaces at the post office. 

The existing and proposed 15-minute parking spaces are recommended to initially remain free. 
Should to Village determine that free parking incentivizes illegal parking, paid parking operations 
should be implemented. 

2.2.2 A Note on COVID-19 

The parking supply and demand data was collected during the COVID-19 pandemic, which is 
anticipated to have impacted the observed parking demand. While domestic and international 
tourism is known to be lower than usual resulting in a decrease in tourist parking demand, day 
trips to Harrison Hot Springs from the surrounding communities have increased. To evaluate 
COVID-19's impact, the total number of pay parking transactions in 2019 and 2021 were 
compared : 

• 2019: 32,905 parking transactions 

• 2021 : 39,316 parking transactions 

These values indicate that there were 19% more transactions in 2021 than in 2019. In other words, 
the increase in day trip parking demand appears to have exceeded the decrease due to reduced 
tourism. Therefore, to remain conservative, a COVID-19 adjustment factor was not applied to the 
observed parking demand. 

2.3 Future Parking Projections 
With the existing waterfront parking system operating at capacity during summer weekends and 
parking demand projected to increase as tourism and the surrounding municipalities grow, 
planning is necessary today. 

Given that the Harrison Hot Springs population of 1 ,500 is only a fraction when compared to the 
750,000 annual visitors, it can be assumed that the parking demand is predominantly visitors. For 
the purposes of this planning assessment, the parking demand is assumed to grow at the same 
rate as the number of tourists visiting the Village have grown. 

Parking demand growth can be managed through transportation demand management (TOM), 
which promote alternative modes of transportation such as transit, cycling , and walking . In other 
words, future parking demand is anticipated to decrease as the personal vehicle mode share 
decreases. 

To project future parking demand, the following factors were applied . 

• Tourist growth factor: Based on data provided by the Village, tourism has increased 
by 12% from 2015 to 2019, or 2.2% per year. 

• TOM reduction: According to the Transit Future Plan by BC Transit, transit mode 
share is anticipated to increase from 1% in 2011 to 2% in 2036, or 0.04% per year. 

By applying these two factors , future parking demand in Harrison Hot Springs was projected under 
the 5, 15, and 25-year horizons. Parking facility demand was grown in excess of 100% utilization 

8 

21 



22 

IBI GROUP FINA L REP O RT 
V ILLAG E OF HARR ISON HOT SPRIN GS PA RKING MASTER PLA N 
Prepared for Vi llage of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

to help identify locations where parking supply constraints are anticipated. Exhibit 2-4 presents an 
overview of the projected 2026, 2036, and 2046 parking operations. 

Exhibit 2-4: Future Parking Operations 

Year Waterfront Residential System 
Utilization Utilization Utilization 

2026 114% 12% 39% 

2036 141 % 15% 48% 

2046 175% 18% 59% 

The waterfront parking system is projected to operate more and more over capacity as parking 
demand grows with time. Solutions are anticipated to be required to meet future waterfront parking 
needs. No parking issues are projected in the Village's residential areas as indicated by the low 
utilization. 

To help identify the locations of future parking capacity constraints , Exhibit 2-5 geographically 
displays each parking facility's projected parking utilization in 2046. 

9 



181 GRO UP FINAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

Exhibit 2-5: 2046 Peak Parking Utilization Map (Weekend 4:00PM) 

Hdrrl$<.ln l.RI\8 

"0~:=-~iL ==--
~~ :. : ~ -
~ \6 

l f.ll~l II I'll 

i 

HARRISION HOT SPRINGS 
PARKING MASTER PLAN 

Future Conditions 2046 

Percent Occupied 

On-street Off-street 

- 0%-50% 

- 51%-70% 
71%-90% 

- 91%-100% 

## Parking Capacity (spaces) 

Waterfront 

Demand I Capacity Utilization 

Waterfront 1095/626 175% 

Rest of Village 309/1758 18% 

SYSTEM 1404/2384 59% 

0 125 250 
m 

January 19, 2022 

:<~II:; 

II 

7/i<! 

l9 

<7 

1 

:;:)) l'l 

mN~ 

I!! I ~ 

10 23 



24 

181 GROUP FINA L REP ORT 
VILLA GE OF HA RRISON HOT SPRIN GS PARKI NG MASTER PLA N 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

As outlined in Exhibit 2-5, most waterfront on-street and off-street parking facilities are projected 
to operate over capacity, indicating the need for additional nearby parking opportunities. Similar 
maps for 2026 and 2036 horizons are included in Appendix A. 

2.4 Future Parking Needs 

Given that the Harrison Hot Springs waterfront parking system was observed to operate at 
capacity, solutions are required today. Strategies aimed at managing demand and increasing 
public parking supply are considered most appropriate. To meet the targeted 90% utilization in 
waterfront area, an additional 60 parking spaces are required today, and 600 parking spaces are 
anticipated to be required by 2046. 

Note that if parking demand returns to pre-COVID levels (19% reduction as outlined in Section 
2.2.2), the waterfront parking system is anticipated to operate with a peak demand of 496 vehicles 
(80% utilization). Under these conditions, some users are likely to perceive difficulty in finding an 
available space, particularly in the popular areas such as Esplanade Avenue, but additional 
parking opportunities would be available nearby. With pre-COVID demand as a base, only 350 
additional spaces are projected to be required to meet 2046 demand. 

Given that the extent to which parking operations return to pre-COVID levels following the 
pandemic is unknown, flexible solutions are required. Harrison Hot Springs is recommended to 
collect parking demand data every 2-3 years to monitor demand. As peak parking demand on a 
non-holiday and non-special event weekend begins to exceed the 90% utilization target, additional 
strategies can be considered . As noted, parking systems are generally designed to accommodate 
the 85-901h percentile peak annual parking demand, which in Harrison Hot Springs represents a 
typical summer weekend . Section 4.5 examines parking operations during special events, which 
represents the peak annual demand. 

When considering potential solutions , the following constraints were identified: 

• The Village does not own vacant land near the waterfront where a parking structure 
could be constructed . A parking structure could be considered on the existing boat 
launch parking lot. However, it is located on the waterfront where a structu re would 
impact the area's natural aesthetics. 

• Procuring new land in the waterfront area for a parking supply expansion may not be 
financially feasible given expensive land costs and limited availability. 

• Waterfront parking demand infiltration into the residential streets is undesirable. 

• As identified through public consultation , off-street parking (far) outside of the 
waterfront area is not appealing due to the distance between the parking facility and 
the waterfront. 

The following sections outl ine the recommended strategies aimed at meeting future parking 
demand while respecting these constraints. However, given the projected number of parking 
spaces required and the limited available waterfront space, the Village is anticipated to be faced 
with difficult decisions where all the constraints may not be met. 

2.4.1 Short Term (1 to 4 years) 

Short term solutions are intended to improve waterfront parking operations over the next few 
years. Solutions that manage parking demand and better utilize existing parking facilities are most 
appropriate since they can be implemented quickly without the need to plan, design, and construct 
new facilities. 

Shared Parking Agreements 

Harrison Hot Springs is recommended to investigate shared parking agreements with private 
developments. Shared parking involves the use of one parking facility by more than one land use, 

11 



181 GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HARR ISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Vi llage of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

taking advantage of different parking demand patterns by time-of-day. Shared parking improves 
the efficiency of existing parking facilities by maximizing utilization and is cost effective since the 
construction of new parking facilities is not required. For Harrison Hot Springs, agreements with 
private establishments can quickly be established to provide immediate relief to public operations. 

To illustrate the principle behind shared parking, Exhibit 2-6 displays the parking demand profile 
of two theoretical developments. 

Exhibit 2-6: Sample Shared Parking Profile 

100% 

90% 

80% 
c 

70% 0 :p 
co 60% N 

:p 
SO% :::::» 

t:IO 
c 40% 
~ ..... 
co a... 30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

#~~~~~~~~~#~#~~~~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

- Development 1 - Development 2 - Total - Capacity 

Development 1 demand peaks during the morning and afternoon while development 2 demand 
peaks in the evening. Both developments peak at approximately 85-90% utilization. However, 
even when combined , the peak utilization remains below 100% capac.ity. Therefore, one shared 
parking facility can serve both developments instead of each development being served by an 
independent parking facility. 

In Harrison Hot Springs, private developments that experience peak demand outside of the Village 
parking system peak could be considered for shared parking. As outlined in Exhibit 2-1 , waterfront 
parking demand steadily increases in the morning, peaks in the afternoon at 4:00 PM, and steadily 
decreases in the evening. Candidate land uses include restaurants which typically peak during 
the evening and hotel and motel accommodations which peak overnight. Based on discussions 
with stakeholders and a scan of waterfront establishments and the land uses' typical parking 
peaks, the following developments present potential shared parking opportunities: 

• Harrison Lake Hotel ; 

• Harrison Beach Hotel; and 

• Central Community Church . 

A post by Richard Wilson entitled "Parking: A Tale of Two Churches" states that religious 
institutions, such as churches, provide excellent opportunities for shared parking. Given that 
churches experience peak demand during weekend mornings, the parking supply remains 
relatively underutilized during weekdays, weekend afternoons, and weekend evenings. Shared 
parking examples involving churches include: 

12 

25 



26 

IBI GROUP FINA L REP OR T 
V ILLAG E OF HARRISON HOT SPRIN GS PARKING MASTER PLA N 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

• Squamish (British Columbia): The Squamish United Church redevelopment project 
proposed one shared parking facility serving the development's residential, office, 
and church land uses. 

• Portland (Oregon): Three dozen Park & Ride lots provide shared parking 
opportunities for nearby apartments, regional justice centre, churches, and movie 
theatres. 

• Portland (Oregon) : Special event parking for the Hawthorne Street Fair is provided 
through shared parking agreements with four churches. Free shuttle bus service is 
also provided to attendees parking at these facilities . 

• Portland (Oregon) : The National College of Naturopathic Medicine has shared 
parking agreements with two nearby churches. 

• Portland (Oregon) : The Oregon health Sciences University parking needs are met 
through on-street parking, a shuttle system, and shared parking agreements with 
nearby churches. 

In Harrison Hot Springs, public parking is known to be available in some hotel parking facilities 
(ex: Harrison Hot Springs Resort), indicating that shared has already been adopted. 

Since there are many ways to operate and maintain a parking facility, each agreement will need 
to be tailored to the facility's unique characteristics through negotiations with the owner. Common 
questions that need to be answered include: 

• How will the par~ing facility maintenance be funded; 

• Who is responsible for parking facility operations; 

• Who is responsible for enforcing the parking facility (if needed); and 

• How are the parking revenues divided? 

The answers to these questions will depend on how that facility is being maintained and operated 
today. For example: if the parking facil ity operations, maintenance, and revenue is contracted to 
a private organization , then the shared parking agreement would need to be coordinated with a 
third party as well. A common approach to shared parking agreements is to decide which party 
will operate and maintain the parking facility. The collected revenues would first go towards 
recovering the operating and maintenance costs. The remaining revenue could then be split 
evenly between the parties. For example, the Village of Oak Park (Illinois) has agreements with 
nearly 30 different private parking lot owners in the Village Centre. In general, the Village has 
taken over maintenance and operations includ ing revenue collection . The Village first recovers its 
costs and the profit is then shared 50/50 with the owner. These leases are typically up to three 
years in length. 

Private Parking Supply 

During PIC 2, private waterfront establishments were stated to generate parking demand that 
exceeded the on-site parking supply, resulting in demand spilling into the municipal system. 
Private parking supply is regulated by the zoning bylaw parking requirements. Developers wishing 
to provide parking less than the zoning bylaw requirements are required to apply for a variance, 
wh ich is at the discretion of the Village Council to approve. The Village is recommended to 
continue requiring parking justification studies if less parking supply is proposed than required, to 
ensure that demand does not spill into the municipal parking system. Additionally, the Village is 
recommended to review the existing zoning bylaw parking requirements to ensure parking 
requirements are reflective of current parking demand generation. Note that, while the zoning 
bylaw review can be completed in the short term, the impacts are anticipated to be long term since 
planning, designing, and constructing new developments takes time. 

13 



IBI GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VIL LAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Vi llage of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

The Village also has a cash-in-lieu of parking provision in its Zoning Bylaw currently set at $15,000 
per parking space. Cash-in-lieu is a provision granted by the municipality to developers who are 
not able to provide the sufficient numbers of parking spaces required by the zoning bylaw. The 
funds are paid to the municipality and deposited into a parking reserve fund to pay for future 
parking expansions. 

Best practices have established that the cash-in-lieu price be set at a point that represents 
approximately 50% of the cost to provide municipal parking, either in structures or surface lots. 
The rationale is due to the shared use nature of the municipal parking supply, where parking 
serves the entire waterfront area instead of being dedicated to a proposed development. Given 
that the waterfront parking system is operating at capacity, the Village is recommended to update 
the cash-in-lieu of parking rate to better reflect the cost of constructing municipal parking. Based 
on Exhibit 2-7 and the anticipated need for structured parking, a cash-in-lieu of parking rate of 
$23,000 per space is considered appropriate. 

Transportation Demand Management 

The Village is recommended to promote and improve alternative modes of transportation to reduce 
personal vehicle mode share of tourists, Fraser Valley day trips, and local residents. Potential 
strategies include: 

• Coordinating with BC Transit to improve Fraser Valley Regional transit service to 
Harrison Hot Springs during the summer (currently Route 11). Note that Transit 
improvements would be tax subsidized by the broader Agassiz-Harrison area; 

• Expanding the Fraser Valley cycling route network; and 

• Expanding the sidewalk network in Harrison Hot Springs to improve pedestrian 
safety. 

The Village completed the Road, Bridge, and Active Transportation Master Plan in 2019, which 
recommended short and long term active transportation network improvements. While improving 
alternative modes of transportation will help manage parking demand, personal vehicles are 
anticipated to remain the dominant mode of travel to and around Harrison Hot Springs. Therefore, 
additional parking is still anticipated to be needed as demand grows. 

Parking Price Increases 

Best practices have established that parking prices are set at a point that establishes financial 
sustainability (parking revenues are sufficient to fund parking expenses) . 

Parking prices can also be used as a transportation demand management strategy. The appeal 
of alternative modes of transportation can be increased through parking price increases. 
According to Canadian Parking Association, the price elasticity of parking demand generally 
ranges between -0.10 to -0.60, with an average value of -0.37. In other words, a 1% increase in 
the price of parking would result in a 0.37% decrease in parking demand. Given that transportation 
to and within Harrison Hot Springs is known to be vehicle centric, a value on the lower end is most 
representative. 

Harrison Hot Springs is recommended to compare historical parking revenues with historical 
parking expenses. If expenses are determined to exceed revenues, increasing parking prices 
would help achieve financial sustainability and manage parking demand. Additionally, an 
argument for further increasing parking prices can be made given the anticipated need for future 
parking supply expansion. The estimated cost of new parking facilities is discussed in Section 2.5. 

2.4.2 Long Term (5+ years) 

Following shared parking agreements, the next preferred solution is to include public parking in 
new developments in addition to the on-site parking required by zoning bylaws. These private
public-partnerships typically involve cost and revenue sharing between the private developer and 

14 

27 



28 

181 GROUP FINA L REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HA RRISON HOT SPRINGS PA RKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

the municipality, which would need to be negotiated on a case-by-case basis. This approach 
integrates public parking into the urban fabric in a more visually appealing way than standalone 
parking facilities . Additionally, depending on when parking operations peak at the new 
development, shared parking agreements can also be leveraged to further increase public parking. 

As a final solution if additional parking supply is still required , the Village can consider a new 
standalone parking facility. The new parking facility is recommended to be designed in an 
environmentally friendly way. Best practice landscaping guidelines include: 

• Minimize surface parking in the waterfront. Where required , locate surface parking in 
the rear of the development and implement tree canopies and vegetation to manage 
the urban heat island effect and protect against climate change; 

• Promote above grade and underground parking structures that are integrated with 
the urban fabric in a discreet manner that compliments the surrounding area's 
character. Above grade structures should aim to have alternative uses on the ground 
floor. Green roofs should be encouraged; 

• Maximize and distribute landscaping throughout the site to screen and soften parking 
lot boundaries, maximize shade and storm water benefits, create a pleasant 
pedestrian realm , and reinforce pedestrian circulation routes; 

• Integrate existing trees, vegetation, natural slopes, and soils where possible; 

• Design parking facilities to manage storm water flow in environmentally sensitive 
ways. For example: permeable pavements where storm water flows directly through 
the pavement into the ground; and 

• Provide continuous landscaped medians every 3 (or fewer) parking aisles in surface 
lots, and landscaped islands at the end of each parking row. Landscaped medians 
should be at least 3m wide. 

Any new parking facility is recommended to also include boat launch parking on the ground level 
as trailers are more difficult to maneuver to the upper levels than personal vehicles. Depending 
on the success of transportation demand management, shared parking agreements, the amount 
of public parking included in new developments, and plot of land footprint, a surface parking facility 
or parking structure could be considered . Given the number of spaces required to meet the 
recommended 90% utilization target, structured parking will likely be appropriate. 

2.5 Future Parking Summary 
Based on the future parking demand projections, an additional 350 to 600 parking spaces are 
anticipated to be required by 2046 to meet the targeted 90% utilization in the waterfront. The exact 
number of spaces needed depends on the extent to which parking demand returns to pre-COVID 
levels. 

To meet future demand, additional parking supply is needed. In the short term, the Village is 
recommended to investigate shared parking opportunities with existing private establishments. 
Additionally, as new developments are proposed, including public parking in addition to the 
required private parking is also recommended. The remaining parking supply needs should then 
be met through a new standalone parking facility. 

As noted in Section 2.4, there is no perfect location for a parking supply expansion given known 
constraints . The Village currently does not own vacant land on the waterfront, purchasing vacant 
land may be financially infeasible, parking facilities further from the waterfront are unappealing 
given the distance, and visitor parking demand spilling onto residential streets is undesirable. The 
Village is anticipated to be faced with difficult decisions where all the constraints may not be met. 

The option to construct a parking structure on the boat launch lot site may be considered. 
However, the site is located on the waterfront, which would detract from the area's natural 

15 



IBI GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Vi llage of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

aesthetics. If the Village decides to proceed, special design consideration would be required to 
blend the structure with the natural landscape as best possible. 

Using data obtained from the 2021 Altus Group Canada Cost Guide, Vancouver parking facility 
construction costs are outlined in Exhibit 2-7. 

Exhibit 2-7: Parking Facility Construction Costs (Vancouver) 

Price Per ft2 Cost of Parking Space (400 ft2) 

Type 
Low High Low High 

Surface Parking $7 $26 $2,800 $ 10,400 

$95 $ 135 $38,000 $ 54,000 

$ 135 $ 180 $54,000 $72,000 

Source: Altus Group Construction Cost Guide, 2021 

A freestanding parking structure is projected to cost $46,000 per space on average (based on the 
low and high ranges). Based on provided financial data, $315,640 gross parking revenue was 
collected in 2021. After expenses, a net revenue of $245,000 was collected . Given that there are 
301 pay parking spaces in the Village, approximately $815 was collected per space. Dividing the 
parking structure cost of $46,000 per space by $815 revenue collected per space per year, results 
in an average payback period of 56 years. Based on this payback period , special consideration 
should be given to this option . 

16 

29 



30 

IBI GROUP FI NAL REPORT 
VILLAG E OF HA RRIS ON HOT SPR INGS PARKIN G MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Vi llage of Harrison Hot Springs 

3 On-Street Parking Regulation Review 

Curbside space is a scarce resource that serves ever increasing demand from various users, such 
as parking, drivers , cyclists, taxis, and transit, couriers, and goods delivery vehicles. As Harrison 
Hot Springs and the surrounding communities continue to grow, the competition for the curbside 
will increase and confl icts between users will occur more frequently. This section reviews Harrison 
Hot Springs existing curbside regulations and examines changes aimed at improving the parking 
system's overall performance. 

3.1 Existing Curbside Regulations 

Using site visits, Google Streetview, and data provided by the Village, an inventory of existing 
curbside regulations was developed. This inventory includes parking restrictions, special 
designations (accessible parking, bicycle lanes, boat launch parking , loading zones, transit zones, 
etc.), and curbside assets (parking wayfinding signage, parking payment machines, and bicycle 
parking) . 

In general , free parking is provided along residential streets subject to the Village's Highway and 
Traffic Bylaw which restricts parking to 48 hours for personal vehicles or 24 hours for commercial 
vehicles . Recreational vehicles are restricted to 8 hours of on-street parking anywhere in the 
Village. The waterfront area has a large variety of curbside regulations given the many competing 
users. The waterfront curbside regulations include: 

• 19 accessible parking spaces; 

• 5 electric vehicle parking spaces ; 

• 17 motorcycle parking spaces; 

• Bicycle lanes along Hot Springs Road and Lillooet Avenue; 

• Four loading zones along the western end of Esplanade Avenue and Lillooet Avenue; 

• Tour bus parking along St. Alice Street; and 

• Transit zones along Lillooet Avenue. 

Exhibit 3-1: Motorcycle Parking along Esplanade Avenue 

Exhibit 3-2 geographically illustrates the waterfront curbside regulations in a map. 

January 19, 2022 17 



181 GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPR IN GS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

Exhibit 3-2: Waterfront Area Curbside Regulations 

Loiiiltn~ ZOO< 

Molo>!~~Pa<~tflll 

!I rust or,,,, P•·•·llll 

-·-

II lOU! Duo> ...... .,'19 .. - -

II Toan"l Zoot 

I 

Curbside A.$$el 

t!2 Stl~ All 

11 n:rli)'Citoll\1 

S Wa)ltO<IInQ Slg· •MJ• 

t!i Paym...,IIAill:h'lt• 

Siq'<'k!PMt ~l!lg 

!_~ 
) 

A 1 Parltlng RHtrlctions 

s Sflecl 411 

• PJ Po~.llliJ II'mml 

• PMkJnt; (l>.lld) 

" 11 r>.rl.Jng imel 

!j NQ Stopping • P:i No Slhbng • P:; No Pllfflnl; 

Q 
-

3.2 Parking Regulation Changes 

~ 

A 

This section discusses the various parking regulation changes that can be considered in 
optimizing the Harrison Hot Springs on-street parking operations. The objective of these changes 
is to balance the parking needs of all users including businesses, residents, visitors (tourists and 
day trips) , and boat launch users. 

• 

• 

• 

January 19, 2022 

During the summer peak, visitors are the main user of the waterfront parking system . 
Visitors generally wish to park as close to the waterfront as possible. Different types 
of parking needs include boat launch, accessible, motorcycle, and electric vehicles. 

Harrison Hot Springs residents wish to restrict visitor parking demand from spilling 
into their neighbourhoods to keep the on-street parking facilities available for their 
needs. Note that the Highway and Traffic Bylaw restricts on-street parking to a 
maximum of 48 hours. 

Businesses aim to provide sufficient parking opportunities to meet the needs of their 
employees and patrons. These parking needs are generally met through on-site oft
street parking facilities, which are regulated by the applicable Zoning Bylaws. Note 
that this study focuses on public parking operations. 

18 

31 



32 

IBI GROUP FINA L REP ORT 
V ILLAG E OF HA RRI SO N HOT SPRIN GS PA RKI NG MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Vi llage of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

3.2.1 Pay Parking System Expansion 

In general, the objective of pay parking operations is to manage parking demand and to generate 
the funding required to maintain , operate, and improve the municipal parking system. 

Pay parking increases personal vehicle user cost, which makes alternative modes of 
transportation more attractive. In Harrison Hot Springs, residents are more likely to walk or cycle, 
Fraser Valley commuters are more likely to take public transit or cycle, and tourists are more likely 
to select public transit. 

Pay parking is the primary tool used to generate the funds required to provide municipal parking. 
Best practices have established that parking prices are set at a point that achieves financial 
sustainability (parking revenues are sufficient to fund parking expenses without a significant 
surplus) . Without pay parking , municipalities typically rely on tax subsidization to maintain and 
operate municipal parking. Pay parking is generally the preferred approach, since the costs 
associated with public parking is transferred directly to the parking user instead of the entire 
population. 

Pay parking operations are most suited to commercial cores where parking demand is the highest, 
or in Harrison Hot Springs, the waterfront area. When evaluating the pay parking limits in Harrison 
Hot Springs, the following two guiding principles were adopted: 

• Pay parking is appropriate along streets that operate near or at the 90% effective 
capacity threshold; and 

• Pay parking is appropriate along streets adjacent to commercial establishments. 

When comparing the Harrison Hot Springs pay parking limits with the existing parking utilization 
map (Exhibit 2-2), the following road segments were identified as streets with free parking that 
meet the above criteria: 

• Lillooet Avenue between St Alice Street and Spruce Street; 

• Cedar Avenue between St Alice Street and Maple Street; and 

• Maple Street between Lillooet Avenue and Cedar Avenue. 

These streets are illustrated geographically in Exhibit 3-3. 

19 



fBI GROUP FINAL REPOR T 
VILLAGE OF HARR ISON HOT SP RIN GS PARKING MASTE R PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

Exhibit 3-3: Recommended Pay Parking Expansion 

Harrison Lake 

'~-

Maple Street 

Cedar Avenue IZIE 

HARRISION HOT SPRINGS 
PARKING MASTER PLAN 

Recommendations 

On-street Parking 

Recommended Pay parking Expansion 

[_J Off-street Parking 

January 19, 2022 

Waterfront 

In the short term, Harrison Hot Springs is recommended to implement pay parking operations 
along Lillooet Avenue. Lillooet Avenue between St. Alice Street and Hot Springs Road is 
recommended to be added to Zone 1, and Harrison Hot Springs Road to Spruce Street would be 
added to Zone 2. As parking demand grows, pay parking operations can also be considered along 
Cedar Avenue and Maple Street. 

Note that Lillooet Avenue is under the jurisdiction of the Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure. Adopting pay parking operations along Ministry roads is possible, however the 
jurisdiction has typically been transferred to the local municipality for the relevant segments. For 
example: 

• Granville Street (Vancouver) ; 

• West Broadway (Vancouver) ; 

• Dunsmuir Street (Vancouver) ; 

• Douglas Street (Victoria); and 

• Blanshard Street (Victoria) . 

While the pay parking system expansion would require new pay parking machines, the cost would 
be offset by an increase in parking revenue. If pay parking operations were implemented along 
Lillooet Avenue, Cedar Avenue, and Maple Street, up to $172,000 in annual revenue is estimated. 
This estimate is based on the $815 revenue generated per space per year noted in Section 2.5, 
and a parking supply of 211 spaces along the identified streets. The collected revenue could be 
allocated towards the new parking facility. 

3.2.2 Boat Launch Parking 

Boating on Harrison Lake is a popular summer activity among Harrison Hot Springs and the 
broader Fraser Valley communities. Owners launch their boats from Harrison Hot Springs and 
then park the trailers in the off-street parking facility adjacent to the launch site. 

20 

33 



34 

IBI GROUP F IN A L REPORT 
V ILLAGE OF HA RRISON HOT SPRING S PARKIN G MAS TER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

The most frequently noted parking issue through the Phase 1 engagement is the boat launch 
parking lot's inability to meet the parking demand, resulting in boat trailer parking demand spilling 
into the surrounding parking system. This supply constraint was observed in the existing 
conditions assessment where the boat launch lot operated at capacity between 2:00 and 5:00 PM 
on the weekend. Therefore, additional boat launch parking opportunities are required to meet 
current and future demand. The public engagement process also identified that non-boat launch 
parking users are known to park in the boat launch parking lot given the less expensive prices. 

To reduce unauthorized parking and increase boat launch parking availability, the potential 
solutions outlined in Exhibit 3-4 are considered . 

Exhibit 3-4: Potential Boat Launch Parking Solutions 

Potential 
Description 

Solution 

Harmonize Coordinate with the Fraser Valley Regional District to maintain parking price 
Prices harmonization as general parking prices increase. 

Maximum 
Restrict parking to a maximum 24 or 48 hours to increase boat launch 

Parking 
Restrictions 

parking turn over and availability. 

Shared Parking Explore shared parking agreements to increase boat launch parking supply. 

Restrict general traffic along Esplanade Avenue between Chehal is Street 
and Spruce Street and reconfigure on-street parking along this segment to 

Esplanade boat launch only. This solution would help better define the border between 
Avenue general parking and boat launch parking and reduce parking user confusion . 

Reconfiguration With the reconfiguration , the pedestrian crosswalk at the Spruce Street and 
Esplanade Avenue intersection could also be realigned to improve the 
orientation. 

If a general traffic through lane is desired to be maintained along Esplanade 
Avenue, Chehalis Street could be restricted to northbound boat launch traffic 

Chehalis Street only and the on-street parking spaces converted to boat launch spaces. The 
Reconfiguration existing general and boat launch parking mix along Esplanade Avenue 

would need to be maintained as the additional space required for boat 
launch parking would not be gained. 

New Parking Increase boat launch parking supply as part of a new parking structure. 
I 

Facility 

Given that the general parking system near the boat launch site was also observed to operate at 
capacity, reallocating general parking spaces to boat launch parking is not considered a viable 
solution. Additionally , boat launch parking users typically require full day parking, which is ideally 
met off-street with on-street spaces serving short term parking users for higher turnover. 
Therefore, the Esplanade Avenue or Chehalis Street Reconfiguration solutions are not considered 
appropriate. 

Harrison Hot Springs is recommended to maintain parking price harmonization between boat 
launch parking and general parking as prices are increased to disincentive unauthorized parking. 
Additionally, Harrison Hot Springs is recommended to investigate shared parking agreement 
opportunities (ex: Central Community Church) and consider restricting boat launch parking to a 
maximum time limit of 24 or 48 hours. Some boat launch users are known to park for multiple days 
which reduces turnover and limits availability. 

21 



181 GROUP FINAL REP ORT 
VILLAG E OF HARRI SON HOT SPRING S PA RKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

In the long term, additional boat launch parking supply is recommended to be included on the 
ground level of the structured parking supply expansion discussed in Section 2.4.2. One option is 
a parking structure on the existing boat launch lot. Alternatively, the Village could purchase new 
land for a parking structure. Ideally, additional boat launch parking would be located near the boat 
launch site. If a new facility is not located in the immediate vicinity, the Village is recommended to 
install boat launch parking wayfinding signs directing users from the boat launch site to the new 
facility. With the boat launch parking needs met off-street, the existing boat launch spaces along 
Esplanade Avenue should be repurposed to general parking to help meet general waterfront 
parking needs. 

Exhibit 3-5: Boat Launch Parking Lot 

January 19, 2022 

3.2.3 Parking Restrictions 

Parking restrictions are useful in prohibiting the use of on-street parking facilities by unintended 
users. Restricting parking to a maximum of 3 or 4 hours along residential streets closest to the 
waterfront would prevent tourist and day trip parking demand spillover since these users typically 
require full day parking. However, by allowing short term parking , resident guests can still utilize 
the on-street parking facilities . 

Parking restrictions are recommended along the following streets (illustrated geographically in 
Exhibit 3-6): 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 

Miami River Drive from Hot Springs Road to Walnut Avenue; 

Walnut Avenue from Hot Springs Road to Miami River Drive; 

Poplar Street from Miami River Drive to Walnut Street; 

Eagle Street from Lillooet Avenue to McCombs Drive; 

Bear Avenue (entire length) ; 

Spruce Street from Lillooet Avenue to Echo Avenue; 

Echo Avenue (entire length); 

Naismith Avenue (entire length); 

Mount Street (entire length); 

Driftwood Avenue (entire length) ; and 

Cottonwood Avenue (entire length) . 

22 

35 



36 

IBI GROUP FINAL REP ORT 
VI LLAG E OF HARRI SON HOT SPR IN GS PARKING MASTE R PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

Exhibit 3-6: Recommended Parking Restrictions 

HARRISION HOT SPRINGS 
PARKING MASTER PLAN 

Recommendations 

January 19, 2022 

On-street Parking 

Recommended Parking Restriction 

Off-street Parking 

Waterfront 

Given that tourist and day trip users mainly visit during the summer months, the restrictions are 
recommended to be in effect between May 15 to September 15 from 6:00 AM to 7:00 PM. Note 
that this matches the period of pay parking operations. 

While significant parking demand spillover into residential neighbourhoods was not observed 
during the parking supply and demand surveys, the waterfront parking system did operate at 
capacity during the peak hour. As parking demand grows due to increased tourism and Fraser 
Valley community growth, parking demand spillover may soon become a larger issue. Therefore, 
the restrictions are recommended to be adopted in the short term to prevent the issue before it 
occurs. 

3.2.4 Residential Parking Permits 

To complement the recommended parking restrictions outlined in Section 3.2.3, Harrison Hot 
Springs is recommended to adopt a residential parking permit system limited to the streets outlined 
in Exhibit 3-6. Residential parking permit hangtags would be distributed to the affected residents, 
which would exempt permit holders from the new 3-4 hour maximum parking time limit. This 
program would allow residents to continue parking on-street as they do today while preventing 
waterfront parking demand from spilling into the neighbourhoods. Note that the residential parking 
permits would not grant an exemption to the current 48 hour maximum parking time limit. 

Residents living on the affected streets could apply for a residential parking permit and provide 
proof of residence and a license plate. Linking the hang tags to license plates would prevent the 
permits from being transferred between users. Residents who own multiple vehicles could apply 
for multiple residential permits. 

23 



IBI GROUP FI NAL REP OR T 
VIL LAGE OF HAR RI SO N HOT SPRIN GS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

In addition to the residential parking permits, the Village is also recommended to grant one day 
permits to vis itors of the residents living on the affected streets upon request (ex: out of town family 
or friend visiting for the weekend) . With the recommended 3-4 hour maximum parking limit coming 
into effect at 6:00AM the following morning, overnight visitors would be required to leave by 9:00 
or 10:00 AM. The one day permits would allow visitors to continue parking on-street as they 
currently do. To maintain the current 48 hour on-street parking maximum, one day permits could 
be granted up to two consecutive days. 

To enforce the recommended residential parking permit program and parking restrictions, the 
Village is recommended to contract an additional Bylaw Enforcement Officer. A common 
enforcement method is digital or physical chalking . Bylaw officers chalk vehicles parked on-street 
along the affected streets during a first patrol loop. During the second patrol loop 3-4 hours later, 
chalked vehicles still parked on-street are identified for potential violations. The officer would then 
simply check for a residential permit before issuing a violation. Note that the residential parking 
permits are recommended to be in effect between May 15 to September 15, which matches the 
parking restriction period. Therefore, year round enforcement would not be required . 

3.2.5 One-sided Parking Restrictions 

One-sided parking restrictions prohibit parking along one side of the street while maintaining 
parking on the other. The intent is to better balance the curbside space between all users. Given 
that the waterfront parking system is operating at capacity and that additional parking opportunities 
are needed, one sided parking restrictions were only considered in the residential 
neighbourhoods. To help identify potential streets, the following guiding principles were 
developed: 

• Streets where parking demand is low enough that restricting parking to one side is 
not anticipated to create any capacity constraints; 

• Streets that are narrow and supporting one through lane per direction may be difficult 
when vehicles are parked on both sides of the street; and 

• Streets without sidewalks where on-street parking operations may present 
accessibility and safety challenges for pedestrians. 

In the event the sidewalk network is expanded as recommended in Section 2.4.1, the sidewalk 
construction is recommended to be coordinated with the one-sided parking restrictions. 
Pedestrians would have a safe and dedicated route on one side of the street and parking would 
be maintained on the other. Based on the above criteria, streets best suited for one sided parking 
restrictions include (illustrated geographically in Exhibit 3-7): 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Bear Avenue: restrict north side parking since parking supply on the south side is 
larger; 

Spruce Street: restrict east side parking with a potential sidewalk on the east side 
that would connect with a potential pedestrian cross walk at the Lillooet Avenue and 
Spruce Street intersection; 

Echo Avenue: restrict north side parking with a potential sidewalk on the north side 
that could be connected with the potential sidewalk on Spruce Street; 

Naismith Avenue (northern half where road width is narrower) : restrict north side 
parking since parking supply on the south side is larger; 

Pine Avenue: restrict south side parking since the parking supply on the north side is 
larger; 

Alder Avenue: restrict north side parking since the parking supply on the south side 
is larger; 

24 

37 



38 

IBI GROUP FI NAL REP ORT 
VILLAG E OF HAR RISON HOT SP RINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19,2022 

• Schooner Place: restrict north side parking since the parking supply on the south side 
is larger; 

• McCombs Drive: restrict east side parking to prevent vehicles from blocking the 
McCombs Drive walking trail ; 

• Eagle Street: restrict west side parking to provide a continuous pedestrian connection 
to the Miami River Greenway and crosswalk to the McCombs Drive walking trail ; 

• Diamond Street: restrict west side parking since parking supply on the east side is 
larger; and 

• Emerald Avenue: restrict north side parking with a potential sidewalk on the north 
side that could be connected to the potential sidewalk on Diamond Street. 

In line with current operations, residential permit holders should be allowed to continue parking 
anywhere in the Village and not be limited to parking adjacent to thei r properties. 

25 



181 GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for ViM age of Harrison Hot Springs 

Exhibit 3-7: Proposed One-Sided Parking Restrictions 

HARRISION HOT SPRINGS 
PARKING MASTER PLAN 

January 19, 2022 

Recommendations 

- On-street Parking 

- Recommended One-sided Parking 

Cl Off-street Parking 

Waterfront 

o 0 125 250m 

#ffl.-,1l)IJL8t,'1 

ll.l'lc1rlo.~ 

2fl 39 



40 

IBI GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

4 Additional Parking Considerations 
This section examines additional parking strategies that can be adopted in Harrison Hot Springs 
to improve the overall parking user experience. 

4.1 Parking Wayfinding Technologies 
Parking wayfinding technologies help guide users to available spaces more efficiently. Currently, 
the Village provides boat launch signs that direct users to the designated parking lot, as outlined 
in Exhibit 4-1 . 

Exhibit 4-1: Existing Wayfinding Signage 

Boat Launch 

Lot 

~====- Esplanade Ave . ' VI 

~' " L -g_ ~ 
:J Q) 

lltl "t:! 
Ill 

' 10 ;lO 
VI a_ lillooetRd _ ,... • 

A ~ .. , ... ,_. (§) Boat launch 
I Wayflnding Sign . 

The best practices research revealed that a static parking wayfinding system includes four 
fundamental sign types. 

Introduction: The first level alerts drivers approaching a parking area. The sign should be distinct 
in both colour and size, be characterized by unique logos, and should display the locations and 
names of off-street parking lots. These signs are located on the street and are mounted on poles 
of standard heights. 

Directional: Directional parking signage is distinct in colour, size, and logo and directs drivers to 
the parking facilities . The signs are mounted on poles at standard heights on the streets. 

Identification: Identification signage is placed at the entrance of each parking lot. The parking lot 
name is identified and the type of parking available is listed. Identification signage is distinctive in 
colour and size, and it is located on a pole at a lower height. 

Pedestrian: These wayfinding signs are placed at locations easily found by a pedestrian, typically 
parking facility entry/exit points. They are intended to help orient pedestrians to their surroundings 
by displaying a map of the area with popular destinations identified. 

Given that the Village's parking system is predominantly on-street parking that is distributed 
throughout the entire waterfront area, a traditional wayfinding system is not considered 
appropriate. 

27 



IBI GROUP FINAL REP ORT 
VILLAGE OF HAR RI SON HOT SPRIN GS PARKING MAS TER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19. 2022 

While the Village already provides boat launch and special use parking signage, the online 
municipal parking system map is recommended to be updated to better identify the special use 
parking space locations and capacity. This map is intended to improve trip planning by helping 
users identify parking opportunities before leaving their homes. This map is envisioned to be 
similar to Exhibit 3-2. Hard copies of the updated map could also be distributed at hotels and 
tourism centres throughout Harrison Hot Springs and the broader Fraser Valley communities. 

A more advanced wa'yfinding system includes variable message signs that display parking 
occupancy data in real-time, allowing users to quickly identify which parking facilities have 
available parking. Although dynamic wayfinding signage is a powerful tool, it is not considered 
appropriate for Harrison Hot Springs since it would require expensive technology upgrades 
capable of tracking parking demand in real-time. 

4.2 Accessible Parking 

Harrison Hot Springs currently provides 19 on-street accessible parking spaces, consisting of 12 
spaces on Esplanade Avenue, 5 spaces on Lillooet Avenue, and 2 spaces on Maple Street. 

The best practices review concluded that accessible parking requirements generally apply to off
street parking, where the number of accessible parking spaces required are a function of the total 
parking supply. In 2018, the British Columbia Building Code removed the accessible parking 
requirements stating that confusion would occur when provincial requirements differed from a 
municipality's local requirements. Upon reviewing the Harrison Hot Springs Zoning Bylaw, 
accessible parking requirements are specified for the off-street parking facilities of private 
developments, but on-street accessible parking requirements were not included. 

As municipalities strive to improve the accessibility of their infrastructure, providing safe and 
convenient on-street accessible parking is equally important. Extending the best practices 
research to other Canadian jurisdictions, the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act 
recommends that municipalities consult with a local accessibility advisory body or stakeholders 
when establishing the location and quantity of accessible on-street parking spaces. Accessible 
on-street parking spaces are ideally located adjacent to developments that have a high number of 
accessible users. 

Based on the collected parking utilization data, a peak accessible parking demand of 10 vehicles 
(53% utilization) was observed at 2:00 PM on the weekend (August 28, 2021 ). This observation 
suggests that the overall number of accessible on-street parking spaces provided is sufficient. 

When examining individual accessible spaces, the spaces on Esplanade Avenue were observed 
to be very highly utilized while the spaces on Lillooet Avenue were rarely occupied. Online survey 
responses also commonly requested that accessible parking be provided near Rendall Park. 
Based on these findings , the Village is recommended to relocate one accessible space from 
Lillooet Avenue to the east side of Spruce Street. 

28 

41 



42 

IBI GROUP FI NAL REP ORT 
VI LLAG E OF HAR RI SON HOT SPRIN GS PARKING MASTER PLA N 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

Exhibit 4-2: Accessible Parking on Esplanade Avenue 

January 19, 2022 

4.3 Bicycle Parking 

The Village currently provides bicycle parking at six locations along Esplanade Avenue between 
St. Alice St and Chehalis Street, concentrated near local establ ishments . The bicycle parking 
locations are illustrated in Exhibit 3-2. 

As determined through discussion with Harrison Hot Springs staff, bicycle parking demand is 
known to be low. This finding was supported by the online survey responses, only 9% of 
responders prefer cycling as their mode of transportation and 63% believe that the current bike 
parking supply is sufficient. Based on these findings, the existing bicycle parking supply is 
recommended to be maintained. 

The 2019 Road, Bridge, and Active Transportation Master Plan recommends an expanded Bicycle 
Network. With improve cycling , bicycle mode share may increase in the future. Therefore, Harrison 
Hot Springs is recommended to monitor bicycle parking demand and consider increasing the 
supply if the existing spaces become well utilized . Similar to accessible parking , the location and 
supply of bicycle parking expansion should be determined through consultation with the public 
and stakeholders. As a starting point for future expansion, bicycle racks are recommended to be 
considered at the east end of Esplanade Avenue near Rendall Park or along the eastern end of 
Lillooet Avenue. Alternatively, the existing bike racks at Memorial Hall can be relocated further 
east along Esplanade Avenue to better distribute existing bike parking facilities. 

As part of the expanded cycling network, the Village is recommended to consider adopting a bike 
share system. Docking stations could be added near popular waterfront destinations along with a 
docking station adjacent to any new remote parking facility . This bike share system is intended to 
increase the appeal of the remote parking facility and cycling as a mode of transportation in 
general. Bikeshare stations with 20 spaces could cost up to $50,000, and up to $75,000 if e-bike 
charging stations are included . These costs can be reduced depending on the cost sharing 
agreement reached with the third party service provider. 

As an emerging trend , e-bike and e-scooters are gaining popularity as a mode of transportation . 
The best practices research determined that e-bike charging stations are rarely seen in North 
America. Users typically charge e-bikes by detaching the battery and charging through a wall 
outlet, which are available at home, hotel rooms, or any indoor facility if allowed by owners. 
Although current demand does not justify installing e-bike charging stations, the Village could 
consider providing them in the future if further study shows increasing demand. 

29 



181 GROUP FI NAL REP OR T 
VILLAG E OF HA RRI SON HOT SPRIN GS PARKI NG MAS TER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

4.4 Electric Vehicle Parking 

The Village currently provides five on-street electric vehicle (EV) charging stations in the waterfront 
area, as outlined in Exhibit 3-2. The users are only required to pay the regular parking fee, 
electricity is provided free of charge. 

The best practices research concluded that the cost of electricity is typically transferred to the user 
through fees paid at the charging station. Common EV charging suppliers in British Columbia are 
ChargePoint, Flo, and BC Hydro EV. All accept user payment through phone apps, RFID card , or 
QR code. The cost depends on the type of charging station. Level 3 stations (fast charging 
stations) cost between $0.20 to $0.30 per minute, while Level 2 stations (slow charging stations), 
cost between $1 .00 and $2.00 per hour. The charging stations track the amount of time spent 
charging , and the user is billed based on the final total. 

In the short term, the Village is recommended to increase the cost of parking spaces with EV 
charging stations by $1 .00 to $2.00 per hour (equivalent to the Level 2 station costs) to transfer 
the cost of electricity to the user without the need for new infrastructure. 

In 2020, the EV mode share in British Columbia was 1.6%. British Columbia's Zero Emission 
Vehicle (ZEV) Act targets 1 0% of new vehicle sales be ZEVs by 2025 and 30% by 2030. These 
targets indicate that EV mode share will quickly increase in the next few years. In 2020, EV sales 
in British Columbia reached 9.4% of new vehicle sales, suggesting that the targets will be met 
earlier than planned. 

Given these findings, the Village is recommended to target 10% of the waterfront pay parking 
system be EV ready by 2025, and 30% by 2030. While these estimates provide targets, the Village 
is recommended to monitor EV space utilization through the recommended parking supply and 
demand survey and install additional charging stations if the existing spaces are determined to be 
well utilized. The new charging stations are recommended to be capable of billing the user for 
electricity. New EV spaces should be spread throughout the waterfront. The best practice is to 
locate EV spaces near popular destination, noting that accessible parking spaces take priority in 
terms of building entrance adjacency. Additionally, EV spaces are ideally located near electric grid 
connections. 

When expanding the EV charging station network, the Village is also recommended to replace the 
current charging stations. New EV charging stations were determined to cost: 

• $6,000 - $9 ,000 per single-port Level 2 charger; 

• $8,000-$14,000 per dual-port Level2 charger; and 

• $20,000 - $100,000 per Level 3 charger, depending on existing electrical 
distribution system. 

To complement public EV charging stations, the Village requires that new private establishments 
provide 1 EV charging station where the parking requirements exceeds 20 spaces. Given that EV 
vehicle mode share is anticipated to quickly increase over the next 5 to 10 years, best practices 
have established that indoor private parking be designed in a manner that permits future EV station 
installation. The Village is recommended to consider such a requirement as part of the 
recommended parking Zoning Bylaw update. 

30 

43 



44 

181 GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRIN GS PARKING MA STER PLA N 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

Exhibit 4-3: Electric Vehicle Parking Spaces on Esplanade Avenue 

January 19, 2022 

4.5 Event Parking Operations 

The Village parking system was determined to peak during summer weekends. However, short
term parking demand spikes are known to occur during special events. Harrison Hot Springs 
regularly hosts special events such as the Dragonboat Festival, Sasquatch Days, Bands on the 
Beach, Festival of the Arts, the Canadian Outrigger Racing Association race, and Canada Day. 
The peak annual parking demand occurs when special events are hosted on summer weekends. 

Parking systems are generally designed to accommodate the 85-901
h percentile peak annual 

parking demand. This approach ensures that the parking supply is sufficient to accommodate all 
but the highest parking demand experienced throughout the year. Parking systems are not 
designed to accommodate the peak annual demand since there would be excess parking capacity 
available during the remainder of the year. Many municipalities have developed special event 
plans with strategies to meet the increased special event parking demand. 

This section investigates Harrison Hot Springs special event parking demand and considers 
strategies to help meet the increased demand. Currently, the vacant land located on the southeast 
corner of Hot Springs Road and Miami River Drive is used as an overflow lot to provide additional 
parking opportunities. However, further consideration for this vacant lot will be included in the next 
Official Community Plan update. In other words, using the land as an overflow lot may not be an 
option in the near future. 

To estimate the additional parking demand associated with special events, the number of pay 
parking transactions during special event weekends were compared to regular weekends. Exhibit 
4-4 summarizes the 2019 special event weekends and compares the number of pay parking 
transactions to the average 2019 weekend (517 transactions) . 

31 



181 GROUP Fl NAL REP OR T 
VILLAG E OF HA RR ISON HOT SPR INGS PA RKIN G MAS TER PLA N 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

Exhibit 4-4: 2019 Special Event Pay Parking Transaction Comparison 

# of Pay Parking Additional 
Event Day Transactions Transactions 

Sasquatch Days July 15 and 16 585 I 13% 

Canadian Outrigger 
August 17 and 18 I 694 34% 

Association Racin 

Bands on the Beach 
August 31 and 

654 I 26% 
September 1 

As illustrated in Exh ibit 4-4, the number of additional transactions ranged between 13% and 34%. 
When applying these values to the peak waterfront parking demand (575 vehicles) , an additional 
75 to 195 vehicles can be anticipated. Given that the waterfront parking system was observed to 
operate at capacity, special event strategies that manage parking demand and provide additional 
parking opportunities without constructing new facilities are considered appropriate. Strategies 
recommended to help meet special event parking demand include: 

• Increase parking prices: By increasing parking prices during special events, 
alternative modes of transportation become more appealing. Special event attendees 
are more likely to choose walking or cycling , while Fraser Valley attendees are more 
likely to choose transit. 

• Improve transit service: Improving transit service frequency and reliability can 
promote a shift in mode choice from personal vehicles to public transit. Increasing 
transit service is even more effective when combined with parking price increases. 
BC Transit Route 11 (Agassiz-Harrison) provides service between Harrison Hot 
Springs and the surrounding communities. The bus frequency could be increased 
during special events. Additionally , shuttle buses could be operated to and from 
nearby communities not typically served by transit to increase to area of coverage 
during special events . Note that Transit improvements would be tax subsidized by 
the broader Agassiz-Harrison area. 

• Encourage event organizers to explore shared parking agreements: To provide 
additional parking opportunities without investing in new infrastructure, the Village is 
recommended to encourage event organizers to enter into shared parking 
agreements. Given that the potential for shared parking agreements with waterfront 
property owners are anticipated to be investigated as part of the recommended 
strategy to meet future parking demand, the private properties located further from 
the waterfront are recommended (ex: Harrison Resort Golf Course, Harrison Hol iday 
Park Association , and local farms) . Given the distance, shuttle bus service between 
the parking facility and the event location is recommended . 

Shared parking agreements could also be established with developments in the Fraser Valley 
communities. Attendees could drive and park at the parking facility in their community and the 
shuttle bus service would then provide a direct connection to the special event venue. As noted 
in Section 2.4.1, Hawthorne Street Fair special event parking is provided through shared parking 
agreements with four churches. Free shuttle bus service is also provided to attendees parking at 
these facilities. 

4.6 Parking Education Best Practices 

The best practice research concluded that communicating through multiple platforms is the most 
effective approach to public communication. Common methods include a municipal website 
dedicated to parking (harrisonhotsprings.ca), social media posts (Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, 
etc.) , newspaper advertisements (Agassiz Harrison Observer), brochures, and email blasts . 

32 

45 



46 

IBI GROUP FINAL REPORT 
VILLAG E OF HA RRISON HOT SPRIN GS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

The Village was determined to already employ multiple methods of communication , which has 
proven to be effective given the online survey's high participation rate. Among 1,500 residents, 
113 survey responses were submitted. Existing practices are recommended to be maintained. 
Based on feedback received from online survey, Village residents' preferred method of 
communication are website posts and email newsletters. A common request was to provide a 
brochure stand on the bulletin boards at the Village office and post office. 

The Village is also recommended to prepare a brochure summarizing the parking operation 
changes in an easy to understand format for public consumption . The brochure should be synced 
with a QR code to allow for contactless distribution. 

Three examples of such brochures include: 

• 

• 

• 

Abbotsford Neighbourhood Guide: https://www.abbotsford.ca/sites/defaultlfiles/2021 -
02/Abbotsford%20Good%20Neighbour%20Guide.pdf 

Moving Cambridge: https://www.cambridge.ca/en/learn
aboutlresources/Transportation/Broch ure _2019-05-07. pdf 

Waterloo Moving Forward: https://www.regionofwaterloo.ca/en/exploring-the
region/resources/Transportation/DOCS_ADMIN-3115278-v3-
Brochure_Region_of_Waterloo_ TMP _Update_2019-09-17.pdf 

33 



IBI GROUP FINAL RE PORT 
VI LLAG E OF HARRISON HOT SPRING S PA RKIN G MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Vi llage of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

5 Public and Stakeholder Consultation 

The public and stakeholder consultation activities were divided into two phases. The first phase, 
consisting of the public information centre 1 (PIC 1 ), an online survey, and a stakeholder meeting, 
was conducted near the beginning of the study to obtain feedback on existing parking operations, 
knowledge of existing parking issues, and desired study outcomes. The second phase, the second 
public information centre 2 (PIC 2), was conducted near the end of the study to present and collect 
feedback on the study's preliminary conclusions and recommendations. 

Due to the on-going COVID-19 pandemic, all consultation activities were completed virtually. 

5.1 Virtual Public Information Centre 1 
The virtual PIC 1 was hosted on September 24, 2021 with approximately 20 members of the public 
in attendance. The meeting consisted of a presentation introducing the study and outlining 
preliminary analysis, which was followed by a questions and answer period. Key PIC takeaways 
included: 

• Concern was raised over whether the collected parking demand data was 
representative of "peak" operations since it was collected late summer and during the 
on-going COVID-19 pandemic; 

The on-going COVID-19 pandemic was determined to increase parking 
demand by 19% due to additional day trip demand. Further details are 
presented in Section 2.2.2. Parking systems are generally designed to 
accommodate the 85-901h percentile peak annual parking demand. This 
ensures that the parking supply is sufficient to accommodate all but the highest 
few parking demand days throughout the year. Parking systems are not 
designed to accommodate the peak annual parking demand since there would 
be excess parking capacity available during the remainder of the year; 

• Boat launch parking demand was stated to frequently spill into the surrounding 
parking system; 

• A residential parking permit program was commonly requested ; 

• Parking demand from private developments was stated to frequently spill into the 
municipal parking system; and 

• Mailing parking information pamphlets could be considered for disseminating parking 
information. 

Full PIC 1 minutes are included in Appendix B. 

5.2 Virtual Stakeholder Meeting 
A virtual stakeholder meeting was held on September 15, 2021 . Individuals in attendance included 
Harrison Hot Springs staff as well as members from Tourism Harrison , Fraser Valley Regional 
District, Precise Parklink, and local business owners. The key takeaways were: 

• 

• 

The boat launch parking lot constantly operates overcapacity with ever increasing 
demand. Some non-boat launch parking users are also known to park in this lot since 
parking prices are lower; 

Similar to PIC 1, concern was raised over whether the collected parking demand data 
was representative of "peak" operations since it was collected late summer and 
during the on-going COVID-19 pandemic; 

34 

47 



48 

181 GROUP FI NAL REP ORT 
V ILLAG E OF HARRISON HOT SPR IN GS PARKI NG MAS TER PLA N 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

• There are potential opportunities for shared parking agreements to better utilize 
existing facilities that may have some spare parking capacity. Possible opportunities 
include nearby hotels, owners of vacant surface lots near the boat launch lot, and 
two farms at the southern end of Harrison Hot Springs; and 

• The short term parking spaces on the west side of Esplanade Ave received positive 
feedback from businesses and parking users. 

Full meeting minutes are included in Appendix B. 

5.3 Online Survey 

An onl ine survey was developed and active from September 13, 2021 to October 1, 2021 . During 
this period , a total number of 113 responses were collected . The survey findings provide a general 
sense of the public opinion and feedback regarding the Village's parking operations . Parking user 
level of satisfaction with the overall parking experience is summarized in Exhibit 5-1. 

Exhibit 5-1: Parking User Satisfaction 

How satisfied are you with your overall parking experience? 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 

Completely unsatisfied • 17 (15.596) 

Slightly unsatisfied ' ~~D~ 

Neutral ' ·. .. I 
1 

I 2 'I" t I I ' 33 (30%) 

Slightly satisfied 
··········- 16 (14.5%} • ! l 

Very satisfied 
~r""/1'" .. 1-, ...... ~ ... .,....."r ·~-·~'~!! -~ 14(12.7%} 

Total number of responses for this question: 110 

As shown in Exhibit 5-1, most parking users were neutral or slightly unsatisfied with the overall 
parking experience[ Other key findings include: 

• Majority of survey participants are full -time residents at the Village; 

• The preferred modes of transportation are driving and walking ; 

• Parking capacity constraints are only evident during the summer season; 

• During the summer, tourist parking demand is known to spill into the residential 
neighborhoods closest to the waterfront. Most commonly Eagle Street, Echo Avenue 
and Miami River Drive; 

• Short duration parking is highly requested ; 

• Summertime parking prices are fair; 

• A residential parking permit program was commonly requested ; and 

• Accessible and bicycle parking infrastructure is sufficient. 

A full summary of the online survey questions and results can be found in Appendix B. 

35 



181 GROUP FI NAL REPORT 
VIL LAG E O F HA RRISON HOT SPRIN GS PARKING MASTER PLA N 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19,2022 

5.4 Virtual Public Information Centre 2 

The virtual PIC 2 was hosted on October 27, 2021 with approximately 10 members in attendance. 
The meeting consisted of a presentation outlining the preliminary study findings, which was 
followed by a questions and answers period. The feedback provided was used to help finalize the 
study recommendations. Key discussion points included: 

• Concern was raised over private parking demand spilled into public parking system. 
It was stated that private businesses should provide off-street parking as required by 
Zoning Bylaw; 

• Additional boat launch and special event parking supply in remote locations wi ll not 
effectively improve parking operations; 

• Boat launch lot is commonly taken up by non-boat launch parking users; 

• Some hotels offer public parking , indicating that shared parking is informally 
occurring ; and 

• New developments should be required to provide electric vehicle (EV) parking and 
charging stations. 

Full PIC 2 minutes are included in Appendix B. 

36 

49 



50 

181 GROUP FI NAL REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HA RRISON HOT SPRINGS PA RKIN G MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

January 19, 2022 

6 Conclusions and Recommendations 
The Village of Harrison Hot Springs initiated the Parking Master Plan to improve year round 
parking operations with a focus on the summer peak. This study balances the needs and 
objectives among the Harrison Hot Springs different parking user groups (visitors, residents, and 
stakeholders) . Based on the study findings, parking solutions tailored for Harrison Hot Springs' 
unique needs have been developed. 

The existing conditions assessment revealed that the waterfront parking system is operating at 
capacity during summer weekends, which represents the peak seasonal demand . No parking 
issues were observed in the residential neighbourhoods given the low demand and visitor parking 
demand spillover from the waterfront was not occurring in large quantities. However, given that 
the waterfront parking system operated at capacity, parking demand spillover is anticipated to 
become a larger issue as parking demand grows in the future. Based on the future projections, 
350 to 600 additional parking spaces are estimated to be needed in the waterfront to maintain 
overall utilization at the 90% target. Therefore, parking solutions are required today to ensure 
tomorrow's parking needs are met. 

The recommended implementation plan is summarized in Exhibit 6-1 . Note that the staff hour 
estimates are included in the cost estimates. 

37 

; 



CJ1 __., 

IBI GROc..~ IN A L REPORT 
VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

Exhibit 6-1 : Implementation Plan 

15-Minute 
Parking 

Parking 
Wayfinding 

Accessible 
Parking 

Electric 
Vehicles 

Boat Launch 
Lot 

Public 
Education 

Waterfront 
Parking Supply 

January 19, 2022 

Quick Wins 

Implement four to five additional15-minute parking spaces in Zone 1 near popular 
establishments such as restaurants along Esplanade Avenue. Maintain free parking 
initially, and potentially implement paid parking if free parking incentivizes illegal parking. 

Update the online municipal parking system map to identify special use parking space 
locations and capacity. 

Maintain existing accessible parking supply and relocate one accessible space from 
Lillooet Avenue to the east side of Spruce Street. 

Increase user cost for parking spaces with EV chargers to offset the cost of electricity. 

Coordinate with the Fraser Valley Regional District to maintain parking price harmonization 
as general parking prices increase. 

Investigate opportunities for shared parking agreements. 

Consider restricting boat launch parking to a maximum of 24 or 48 hours. 

Prepare a brochure summarizing the recommended parking operation changes in an easy 
to understand format. Sync the brochure with a QR code to allow for contactless 
distribution 

Investigate shared parking agreements with private waterfront developments to increase 
the public parking supply by leveraging existing parking facilities. Candidate land uses 
include restaurants, and hotel and motel accommodations which peak outside of the 
municipal parking system peak. Two options identified through stakeholder consultation 
are Harrison Lake Hotel and Harrison Beach Hotel. 

$3,000- $5,000 for parking space 
signs, paint, and staff hours to 
facilitate the implementation (30 -
40 staff hours) 

$3,000- $5,000 for staff hours to 
update the parking system map 
(30 - 50 staff hours) 

$3,000 - $5,000 for staff hours to 
facilitate the relocation (30 - 50 
staff hours) 

$3,000- $5,000 for staff hours to 
reprogram EV parking spaces (30 -
50 hours) 

$5,000- $7,000 for staff hours to 
coordinate with Fraser Valley 
Regional District (50 - 70 hours) 

$5,000- $7,000 for brochure stand 
and staff hours to facilitate (50 - 70 
hours) 

$10,000- $15,000 for staff hours 
for shared parking agreements. 
(1 00 - 150 staff hours) 

38 



0'1 
N 

181 GROUP FINAL REPORT 
V ILLAG E OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

Parking 
Restrictions 

Residential 
Parking 
Permits 

Additional 
Enforcement 

One-sided 
Parking 

Pay Parking 
Expansion 

Bicycle Parking 

Electric Vehicle 
Parking 

January 19, 2022 

Short Term (1 to 4 Years) 

Implement 3 or 4 hour parking maximum restrictions along the residential streets closest to 
the waterfront to prevent visitor parking demand spillover. 

Develop a residential parking permit program and apply it to the residential streets where 
parking maximums were implemented. The program would exempt permit holders from the 
3-4 hour maximum parking time limit and allow residents to continue parking on-street up to 
the current 48 hour maximum. Enforcement would be required to ensure compliance. 

Hire an additional enforcement officer during the summertime to help ensure parking 
restriction and residential parking permit compliance. 

Restrict parking to one side along Bear Avenue, Echo Avenue, Spruce Street, Naismith 
Avenue, Pine Avenue, Diamond Street, McCombs Drive, Alder Avenue, Schooner Place, 
and McPherson Road. 

Implement pay parking operations along Lillooet Avenue. This expansion will require new 
pay parking machines and coordination with the Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure. 
Approximately 13 additional pay parking kiosks are anticipated to be required. 

Maintain existing bicycle parking supply. 

Plan to provide EV charging stations in line with the British Columbia EV sales targets (1 0% 
by 2025 and 30% by 2030). The new charging stations should be capable of transferring the 
cost of electricity to the user. Monitor EV charging station demand and increase supply as 
needed. 

$10,000- $15,000 for parking 
signs and staff hours to facilitate 
the implementation (1 00 - 130 staff 
hours) 

$30,000- $40,000 for staff hours 
to develop the residential parking 
permit program (300 - 400 staff 
hours) 

$8,000- $10,000 per summer (4 
months) for staff hours to 
administrate the one day parking 
permit program (80 - 100 staff 
hours) 

$106,000 for the 4 summer months 

$10,000-$15,000 for parking 
signs and staff hours to facilitate 
the implementation (80 - 130 staff 
hours) 

$300 monthly per smart parking 
kiosk rental ($15,600 May 15-
September 15) 

$5 ,000 - $8,000 for parking signs 
and staff hours (50 - 70 staff 
hours) 

Net revenue gain: up to $132,000 
annually 

None 

10% Deployment (35 single port 
level 2 chargers): $210,000-
$315,000 for hardware plus $5,000 
- $13,000 annually in network fees 

39 



(.T1 

w 

IBI GRu _ A' INAL REPO RT 
V ILLA GE OF HA RRISON HOT SP RIN GS PARKI NG MASTE R PLA N 
Prepared for Village of Harrison Hot Springs 

Special Events 

Transportation 
Demand 

Management 

Zoning Bylaw 
Update 

Pay Parking 
Expansion 

January 19, 2022 

Implement the following strategies during special events to meet the increased demand: 

• Increase parking prices. Note that parking meter programming is not completed locally 
and may therefore not be feasible. Coordination with the service provider is required ; 

• Increase BC Transit Route 11 frequency and consider shuttle bus service to 
surrounding municipal centres not included on the route; and 

• Promote event organizers to enter into shared parking agreements with private 
properties on the outskirts of Harrison Hot Springs (ex: Harrison Resort Golf Course, 
Harrison Holiday Park Association , and local farms) . Shuttle bus service is also 
recommended . 

Promote alternative modes of transportation to reduce personal vehicle mode share. 
Potential solutions include: 

• Coordinate with BC Transit to improve the Fraser Valley and Vancouver transit service 
to Harrison Hot Springs during the summer (currently just Route 11 ); 

• Expand the Fraser Valley cycling route network; and 

• Expand the sidewalk network in Harrison Hot Springs network to improve pedestrian 
safety. 

Strategies should be in-line with the recently completed Road, Bridge, and Active 
Transportation Master Plan. 

Review the existing zoning bylaw parking requirements and update as necessary to better 
reflect existing parking demand generation. Increase the cash-in-lieu of parking price to 
better reflect the cost of providing municipal parking ($23,000 per space) . 

Long Term (5+ Years) 

Implement pay parking operations along Cedar Avenue and Maple Street. This expansion 
will require approximately 5 new pay parking machines. 

$3,000 - $5,000 to reprogram pay 
parking machines 

Revenue gain: $1 ,000 per day 
(actual amount depends on price 
increase) 

Transit improvements tax 
subsidized by Agassiz-Harrison 
area 

Shared parking agreements 
funded by event organizer 

Transit improvements tax 
subsidized by Agassiz-Harrison 
area 

Active transportation cost 
estimates outlined by the Road, 
Bridge, and Active Transportation 
MasterPlan 

$20,000- $30,000 for staff hours 
to complete the zoning bylaw 
review (200 - 300 staff hours) 

$300 monthly per smart parking 
kiosk rental ($6,000 May 15-
September 15) 

$3,000 to $5,000 for parking signs 
and staff hours to facilitate the 
implementation (30- 50 hours) 

Ne revenue gain: up to $51 ,000 
annually 

40 



0'1 
~ 

IBI GROUP FINAL REPORT 
V ILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS PARKING MASTER PLAN 
Prepared for Vi llage of Harrison Hot Springs 

Electric Vehicle 
Parking 

Waterfront 
Parking Supply 

Boat Launch 
Parking 

Monitor Parking 
Operations 

January 19, 2022 

Plan to provide EV charging stations in line with the British Columbia EV sales targets (30% 
by 2030). Note that the total price estimate is incremental (assumes the 10% EV target was 
met in 2025). Monitor EV charging station demand and increase supply as needed. 

To meet long-term parking needs, the Village is recommended to: 

• Explore opportunities to include public parking in new developments. 

• If sufficient parking supply is not gained through shared parking agreements and new 
developments, a new standalone parking facility can be considered . 

Include boat parking on the ground floor of the new parking facility. Convert the on-street 
boat launch spaces along Esplanade Avenue to general parking. If the new facility is not 
located in the immediate vicinity of the boat launch site, parking wayfinding signs are 
recommended to guide users from the launch site to the new parking lot. 

On-Going 

Regularly collect parking supply and demand data in the waterfront (every 2 to 3 years) to 
monitor parking operations and expand parking supply as needed. The parking demand data 
collection should distinguish between all parking user types to help inform decision makers 
(general, accessible, EV, motorcycle, bicycle, etc.). 

30% Deployment (70 single port 
level 2 chargers) : $420,000-
$630,000 for hardware plus 
$10,000- $26,000 annually in 
network fees 

$2,800 - $10,400 per surface 
parking space 

$38,000- $54,000 per parking 
structure space 

Total Cost (assuming 350 spaces): 
$13,300,000-$18,900,000 

Cost included in the above 350 
parking space structure estimate 

$8,000 - $10,000 for wayfinding 
signs and staff hours to facilitate 
the implementation, if needed (80 -
100 staff hours) 

$3,000- $5,000 for staff hours per 
parking demand survey (30 - 50 
staff hours) 

41 



~(~) 

HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 
AJ~.-l'l ~.,...J,..J 

VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

TO: Mayor and Council DATE: January 12, 2022 

FROM: Tyson Koch, AScT, RSIS 
Operations Manager 

FILE: 6130-01 

SUBJECT: Permanent Washrooms for Spring Park 

ISSUE: 

To discuss the potential of installing a permanent washroom in Spring Park. 

BACKGROUND: 

At the Regular Meeting of December 6, 2021, Council received a request for 
consideration of the installation of a permanent washroom in Spring Park. 

Staff was directed to return with options for a permanent washroom for Spring Park, 
including consideration of a Portland Loo, for Council to review before the final adoption 
of the 2022-2026 Financial Plan Bylaw. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the January 12, 2022 report regarding options for a permanent washroom in Spring 
Park be received. 

Respectfully submitted: 

-r !d >QYv ko-vh--
Tyson Koch , AScT, RSIS 
Operation Manager 

REVIEWED BY: 

fVI~fV!w~ 

Madeline McDonald 
Chief Administrative Officer 

55 



56 

Option #1: 

Portland Loo 

The Portland Loo is a unitary public toilet designed by the city of Portland, Oregon. It is 
manufactured, sold, and marketed by the Portland-based manufacturer Madden 
Fabrication. British Columbian cities that purchased and installed this unit are Victoria 
(2012), Vancouver (2017, 5 total), Kamloops (2018), Smithers (2017, Nelson (2017), 
Nanaimo (2013), Kelowna (2021), Township of Esquimalt (2019) and the City of Prince 
Rupert. Cost for the facility only ranges from $150,000.00 to $200,000.00. Fees to 
·engineer a structural pad, drainage, water service and sanitary service are estimated to 
be $20,000.00. Installation of the structural pad and utilities are estimated to be 
$50,000.00. 

Maximum cost estimate: $275,000.00 

2 

-,·~ ·~ 



Option #2: 

Washroom with Covered Structure and Seating Area 

Carscadden Stokes McDonald designed and managed construction for this structure 
which was installed in Moodyville Park in North Vancouver. The construction tender in 
2018 was $372,700.00. Engineering and utility installations cost approximately 
$93,000.00. 

Maximum cost estimate: $465,700.00 

3 

57 



58 

Option #3: 

Washroom 

Carscadden Stokes McDonald also designed and managed construction for this option. 
The structure was installed along the OK Rail Trail. This installation included a water filling 
station. The construction tender in 2021 was $240,000.00. Engineering and utility 
installations cost approximately $60,000.00. 

Maximum cost estimate: $300,000.00 

4 



Option #4: 

Washroom with Covered Structure 

Sanderson Concrete designs and manages construction of concrete structures which 
have been installed in many municipalities throughout the lower mainland. Sanderson 
Concrete provided an estimate of $275,000.00 for a 3m x 3m single room accessible 
washroom with a small covered area. The estimate included engineering , construction 
(including trades) and site preparation . 

Maximum cost estimate: $275,000.00 

5 

59 



60 

Option #5: 

Washroom - Equivalent to Rendall Park 

In 2017 , Village council received a report from staff that identified the cost to install an 
equivalent washroom facility at Rendall Park to be roughly $144,100.00. Adjusting the 
2017 cost estimate to meet 2022 costs, the estimate increases to $225,000.00. 

Maximum cost estimate: $225,000.00 

6 



4(e) 
• VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 

HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 
IJ..t"<lp.[{l ~·~ 

REPORT TO COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

TO: Mayor and Council DATE: January 17, 2022 

FROM: Rhonda Schell FILE: 6130-01 
Community Services Manager 

SUBJECT: Off-Leash Dog Park 

ISSUE: 
Consideration of an off-leash dog park. 

BACKGROUND: 
At the May 28, 2021 Committee of the Whole meeting, Council directed staff to conduct a public 
consultation process to gauge the level of public support for an off-leash dog park, identify the most 
desired location, and determine the willingness to financially support this park. At the Regular Council 
Meeting of October 4, 2021 Council, received the results from a survey which indicated a strong desire 
for an off-leash dog park within the Village. Firehall Park was the most popular choice. When asked how 
much capital spending from taxation or dedicated reserves would be supported to develop an off-leash 
dog park, up to $75,000 was the most common choice and up to $10,000 from taxation for ongoing 
maintenance costs . 

DISCUSSION: 
The Village has collected Parks Development Cost Charges (DCC) that may be used for the acquisition 
or upgrades of new parks. Eligible expenses related to a dog park include fencing , landscaping, 
drainage and irrigation , trails , and restrooms. Additional amenities could be procured with dedicated 
parkland reserves. The following table identifies common off-leash dog park amenities and estimated 
costs. 

Amenity Description Cost 

DCC Eligible Expenses 

Fencing Fencing (4' black chain link) with a double gate system to allow for $35,000 
leashing up dogs in a secure area . (The north side of the property 
adjacent the school yard is already fenced.) 
Fencing to create a segregated area to minimize the interaction 
between small and large dogs. 

Landscaping Some removal of trees and brush clearing to create trails and maximize $20,000 
the usable area of the site. Lim bing the trees near trails up 6' to create 
clear sightlines and increase safety. 

Trails An accessible 1 0' wide gravel trail around the perimeter of the park to $60,000 
allow for multi-directional walking. 

Irrigation & Infrastructure and installation costs (not required if restrooms, water $50,000 
Drainage fountain , or dog wash station are not installed). 
(Optional) 
Restrooms Public washrooms in keeping with other park installations. $225,000 
(Optional) 

---

61 



62 

2 

Parkland Reserve Eligible Expenses 

Access & 
Parking 

Signage 

Sanitation 

Seating 
(Optional) 

Lighting 
(Optional) 

Water 

components 
(Optional) 

Additional 
landscaping 
costs would 
apply. 

Construct gravel access road along North side of Fire Hall and 
create new parking behind the Hall which does not impede existing 
access and earess from the Hall 
Signage to identify the park and clearly communicate Village policies, 
including any enforcement provisions, in an easy to understand format. 
Signage will clearly outline expectations and user responsibility. 

Doggy bag dispenser and waste receptacle 

Five benches and concrete pads that match the Village streetscape 
furnishings. 

Lighting to increase the number of hours that the park is usable in the 
winter months 

Water bottle filling station with dog bowl water dispenser. Infrastructure 
to bring water into the park. 

A heavy-duty stainless-steel pedestal with hose connections installed 
on a concrete pad with drainage. 

A small area of 
the park could be 
cleared or agility 
stations spread 
out along the trail 
could be 
installed. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

$50,000 

$5,000 

$5,000 

$15,000 

$50,000 

$15,000 

$5,000 

$30,000 

The cost required to create a modest off-leash dog park is estimated at approximately $175,000 
($115,000- DCC I $60,000- Reserves). Optional amenities could bring the costs up by an additional 
$390,000. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
THAT the Off-Leash Dog Park report of January 17, 2022 be received . 

Respectfully submitted: 

RhondcvS~ 
Rhonda Schell 
Community Services Manager 

REVIEWED BY: 

lvf~ lvfC:O~ 
Madeline McDonald 
Chief Administrative Officer 

REVIEWED BY: 

lv~ T~-PL-vo-vv 
Tracey Jones-Piron 
Financial Officer 



4 (.f) 

e VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 
HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 

ltJ,.fvr,.(("l ~est.w.J 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

TO: 

FROM: 

Mayor and Council 

Tyson Koch, AScT, RSIS 
Operations Manager 

SUBJECT: Water Filling Stations/Water Fountains 

ISSUE: 

DATE: January 19, 2022 

FILE: 5600-01/6130-20-01/02 

Installation of water filling stations/water fountains in Rendall Park, Spring Park and 
the Beach Washrooms. 

BACKGROUND: 

Council previously approved up $10,000.00 from Gas Tax funds for the purchase of 
a water bottle filling station/water fountain for the Beach Washrooms and/or Rendall 
Park Since that time, CO VI D-19 Restart Grant funding has been made available 
which could be used for these improvements, instead of Gas Tax, which will enable 
the Village to install hands free units in up to three locations within the Village. 

DISCUSSION: 

Since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, concern has been raised about the 
transmission of bacteria and viruses through common touch points. COVID-19 has 
been shown to remain active on some surfaces, which poses potential health 
sanitary risks associated with commonly touched surfaces such as hand-operated 
water bottle filling stations/water fountains. 

Drinking water bottle filling stations/water fountains serve an important function, 
providing free access to safe municipal water, offering an alternative to bottled water 
or sugary drinks and accommodate a wide array of users, including both residents 
and visitors. 

Staff recommend installing foot activated water bottle filling station/water fountains 
for Rendall Park and Spring Park and replacing the existing water fountain at the 
Beach Washrooms with a fountain that incorporates a water bottle filling station . 

63 



64 

2 

COST ESTIMATES: 

The approximate installation costs are as follows: 

Rendall Park 

Water Bottle Filling Station/Water Fountain w/Foot Pedal Cost: $12,000.00 
Estimated Installation Cost: $4,000.00 

Estimated Total Cost: $16,000.00 

Spring Park 

Water Bottle Filling Station/Water Fountain w/Foot Pedal Cost: $12,000.00 
Estimated Installation Cost: $10,000.00 

Estimated Total Cost: $22,000.00 



3 

Beach Washrooms 

Water Bottle Filling Station/Water Fountain: $4,000.00 
Estimated Installation Cost: $3,000.00 

Estimated Total Cost: $7,000.00 

Total Estimated Cost: $45,000.00 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the installation of water bottle filling stations/water fountains at Rendall Park, 
Spring Park and the Beach Washrooms be approved at a cost of up to $45,000.00 
to be funded by the COVID-19 Safe Restart Grant funding . 

Respectfully submitted: 

I YWYY Ko-cJv 
Tyson Koch, AScT, RSIS 
Operations Manager 

REVIEWED BY: 

I vcu;.ey T o-vl.£1T-P wo-vv 
Tracey Jones-Piron 
Financial Officer 

REVIEWED BY: 

lvf~lvfcV~ 
Madeline McDonald 
Chief Administrative Officer 

65 



99 



lJ(~) 

VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 
HARRISON HOT SPRINGS 

N,..r:x~ f?.•{r«,J,bi 

REPORT TO COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

TO: Mayor and Council DATE: January 18, 2022 

FROM: Rhonda Schell FILE: 8500-04 
Community Services Manager 

SUBJECT: BC Transit Bus Shelter Program 

ISSUE: 

BC Transit's cost-sharing bus shelter program. 

BACKGROUND: 

Federal funding has been secured by BC Transit through to the 2024/25 fiscal year to help 
lower the capital cost of new bus stop amenities. The program is jointly funded by the Federal 
and Provincial Government under the Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program (ICIP). This 
program covers up to 80% of the capital costs. The municipal share of the costs include 20% 
of the amenity plus the full cost of site prep, installation and shipping . The shelters remain an 
asset of BC Transit, with the ongoing maintenance, upkeep, safety and liability for the shelters 
being the responsibility of the Village. 

DISCUSSION: 

There are eleven bus stops throughout the Village, six remain without shelters or benches. 
The Village has participated in the Transit Shelter Program in the past with the installation of 
five E2 type bus shelters. Installing E2 Base Shelters meets the needs of our ridership and 
further shelter installations should be the same model to keep all shelters in the village 
consistent, resulting in lower ongoing maintenance costs. 

BC Transit is requesting that communities that wish to participate in the cost share program 
submit applications for current and future years through to 2024. Staff is recommending that 
the Village apply to BC Transit for funding to install E2 Base Shelters at the remaining bus 
stops at a cost of up to $14,000 each according to the following schedule: 

Year Budget Bus Sto 
2022 $14,000 132025 s Road 900 Block 
2023 $28,000 126010 s Road at Asoen Lane 

126011 
2024 I $42,000 I 132007 

132024 Eaale Street at Bear Avenue 
132004 Emerald Ave at Hot Sorinas Road 

67 



68 

2 

Before shelters are installed at the following locations, staff is recommending that bus stop 
132024, 132025 and 126011 be relocated. 

Bus Stop 132024 
Eagle Street at Bear Avenue 

Due to required access to 
municipal infrastructure, a shelter 
can not be installed at this 
location . Additionally, there is a 
bus stop at the northern entrance 
to Spring Park resulting in two 
stops within very close proximity. 
Staff is recommending that this 
bus stop be moved 280 metres 
south to the streetlamp on the 
west side of Eagle Street between 
Naismith Avenue and Driftwood 
Avenue. This location would be 
appropriate for the installation of a 
bus shelter. 

Bus Stop 132025 
Hot Springs Road 900 Block 

Illuminating a shelter at this 
location is problematic due to 
insufficient sunlight to charge a 
solar panel and the absence of 
Village owned electrical 
infrastructure in the vicinity. Staff 
is recommending that this bus 
stop be moved approximately 18 
metres south where it will be 
illuminated by an existing street 
lamp. 



Bus Stop 126011 
Hot Springs Road at 
Balsam Avenue 

BC Transit strongly recommends 
bus stops be located after an 
intersection to allow for transit 
vehicles to move through 
intersections more efficiently and 
for other road users to safely 
pass a bus while it is stopped . 
Staff is recommending that this 
bus stop be moved approximately 
110 metres north where it will be 
illuminated by an existing street 
lamp. 

3 

The process of moving a bus stop requires an application to BC Transit and notification to 
adjacent property owners . 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. THAT staff be authorized move bus stops 132024, 132025 and 126011 to the 
locations proposed in the BC Transit Bus Shelter Program report of January 18, 2022 
or alternate locations approved by BC Transit. 

2. THAT staff apply to BC Transit's Transit Shelter Program for one E2 Base Shelter in 
2022, two E2 Base Shelters in 2023, and three E2 Base Shelters in 2024. 

3. THAT an E2 Base Transit Shelter be installed for Bus Stops 132025, 126010, 126011 , 
132007, 132024, and 132004; and 

4. THAT up to $14,000 in 2022, $28,000 in 2023 and $42,000 in 2024 for the installation 
of bus shelters be included in the Five-Year Financial Plan to be funded from the 
Federal Gas Tax Fund. 

Respectfully submitted: 

Rhondcv scJteU; 
Rhonda Schell 
Community Services Manager 

REVIEWED BY: 

Tywrv Ko-dv 
Tyson Koch 
Operations Manager 

REVIEWED BY: 

lvl cu:leUvuv lvl C:Oo-vui[d, 
Madeline McDonald 
Chief Administrative Officer 

REVIEWED BY: 

T vg.,c;ey [QVL€1( 

Tracey Jones 
Financial Officer 

69 




